

Universität Potsdam

Lehrstuhl für Wirtschaftsinformatik, insb. Social Media und Data Science Chair of Business Information Systems, esp. Social Media and Data Science

Bachelorarbeit | Bachelor Thesis

"Technology Addiction Scales in the Areas of Internet, Smartphone, Video Games and Social Network Sites – A Systematic Literature Review"

Author:	Adrian Abendroth
Degree:	Wirtschaftsinformatik
	and Electronic Government
Student Number:	780915
Primary Supervisor:	Prof. Dr. Hanna Krasnova
Second Supervisor:	Dr. Daniel le Roux

Location, Date

Potsdam, 11.07.2019

This work is licensed under a Creative Commons License: Attribution 4.0 International. This does not apply to quoted content from other authors. To view a copy of this license visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

Published online at the Institutional Repository of the University of Potsdam: https://doi.org/10.25932/publishup-43555 https://nbn-resolving.org/urn:nbn:de:kobv:517-opus4-435559

Abstract

As digital media infiltrate an increasingly greater proportion of our lives, concern about the possibility of various forms of technology addictions has emerged. For technology addiction, researchers have developed a variety of self-reported scales in areas such as Internet, smartphones, videogames, social network sites (SNS) or television. However, no uniform criteria or definition exists for technology addiction. Utilized dimensions of technology addiction, to measure specific outcomes, lack a conceptual standard. Therefore, linkages between technology areas dimensions have not been examined in a broader way by the research community, in order to develop a uniform technology addiction scale.

In this regard, firstly, a theoretical model was developed in order to extract common technology dimensions. Secondly, a systematic literature review in the areas of Internet, smartphone, video games and SNS was conducted in order to extract the dimensions used. To identify relevant studies, nine databases (GoogleScholar, ScienceDirect, PubMed, EmeraldInsight, Wiley, SpringerLink, ACM, iEEE and JSTOR) were searched, producing 4698 results, and 50 studies met the inclusion criteria. Thirdly, the developed theoretical model was utilized in order to determine the dimension in each of the identified scales.

Based on analysis of the dimensional distributions, the findings suggest that there are common dimensions across areas of technology such as "compulsive use" and "negative outcomes" but also differences in dimensions across areas such as "social comfort" and "mood regulation", which are more used in the area of SNS. Moreover, new dimensions such as "cognitive absorption" or "utility and function loss" for technology addiction were extracted, which should be considered as these have not yet been researched in a broader way. In addition, no gold standard for the conceptual criteria or definition for technology addiction has been developed yet.

Keywords

Systematic Review, Technology Addiction Scales

Zusammenfassung

Digitale Medien durchdringen immer mehr das alltägliche Leben. Dadurch entsteht die Sorge, dass sich verschiedene Formen von Technologiesucht für Menschen herausbilden. Dabei haben Forscher eine Vielzahl von Messinstrumenten in den Bereichen Internet, Smartphones, Videospiele, Social Network Sites (SNS) oder Fernsehen entwickelt, um Süchte zu messen. Jedoch gibt es keine einheitlichen Kriterien oder eine standardisierte Definition der Technologiesucht, um diese für spezifische Dimensionen zu erfassen. Dies ist einer der Gründe warum die Forschungsgemeinschaft die Zusammenhänge zwischen den einzelnen Dimensionen nicht weiter untersucht hat, um einheitliche Messinstrumente zu entwickeln.

Aus diesem Grund hat diese Studie zunächst ein theoretisches Modell entwickelt, um gemeinsame technologische Dimensionen zu extrahieren. Danach wurde eine systematische Literaturrecherche in den Bereichen Internet, Smartphone, Videospiele und SNS durchgeführt, um die verwendeten Dimensionen zu ermitteln. Um relevante Studien zu identifizieren, wurden neun Datenbanken (GoogleScholar, ScienceDirect, PubMed, EmeraldInsight, Wiley, SpringerLink, ACM, iEEE und JSTOR) durchsucht, die 4698 Ergebnisse lieferten. 50 dieser Messinstrumente haben die gesetzten Kriterien erfüllt. Darauffolgend ist das entwickelte theoretische Modell verwendet worden, um die Dimension in den 50 identifizierten Messinstrumenten zu bestimmen.

Basierend auf der Analyse der dimensionalen Verteilung deuten die Ergebnisse darauf hin, dass es gemeinsame Dimensionen in Technologiebereichen wie z.B. "zwanghafte Nutzung" und "negative Ergebnisse" gibt. Aber es gibt auch Unterschiede in der Verteilung in den Dimensionen der Technologiebereiche. Zum Beispiel sind "sozialer Komfort" und "Stimmungsregulierung", im Bereich der SNS stärker vertreten. Zudem sind neue Dimensionen der Technologiesucht extrahiert worden. Zum Beispiel die "kognitive Absorption" oder der "Nutzen- und Funktionsverlust", welche noch nicht breiter erforscht worden sind. Darüber hinaus ist noch kein Standard für die konzeptionellen Kriterien oder die Definition der Technologiesucht entwickelt worden.

Schlüsselwörter

Systematische Literaturrecherche, Technologie Sucht Skalen

Table of Contents

List of AbbreviationsV
List of FiguresVI
List of Tables
1. Introduction
1.1 The Present Study2
2. A Conceptual Model of the Dimensions of Technology Use Addiction
2.1. Behavioral Addiction
2.2. Mapping the Dimensional Structure
2.3. Technology Addiction as a Form of Behavioural Addiction10
2.4. Areas of Technology Addiction11
3. Methodology
3.1. Inclusion Criteria
3.2. Search Strategy
3.3. Data Extraction and Management15
3.4. Search Results
3.5. Included Scales
3.6. Analysis Procedures17
4. Analysis and Results
4.1. Sample Description
4.2. Dimensional Foundation
4.2.1. Dimensional Mapping19
4.2.2. Description of Dimensional Structure
4.3. Relationship Network Mapping
5. Discussion
5.1. Limitations
5.2. Prospects for Future Research
6. Conclusion
7. References
APPENDIX
Appendix 141

Appendix 2	46
Appendix 3	
Selbstständigkeitserklärung	

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

APA	American Psychological Association		
DSM-IV	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fourth Edition		
DSM-IV-TR	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fourth Edition, revised		
DSM-V	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fifth Edition		
ICD-10	International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems in the tenth revision		
ICD-11	International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems in the eleventh revision		
ICT	Information-Communication Technology		
IGD	Internet Gaming Disorder		
SNS	Social Network Sites		
WHO	World Health Organization		

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Comparison of Models	9
Figure 2. Search Query	14
Figure 3. Flowchart for Study Inclusion	16
Figure 4. Technology Addiction scales per Year	19
Figure 5. Dimensional distribution after initial reviewing	20
Figure 6. Network Graph	23

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. History of Classification	4
Table 2. DSM-V Criteria – Substance Use Disorder (APA, 2010)	6
Table 3. "Component" Model of (Griffiths, 2005)	7
Table 4. Lortie and Guitton's model (2013)	8
Table 5. Coding Rounds	21
Table 6. Dimensional Distribution of Items	22
Table 7. DSM Distribution across extracted Scales	23

1. INTRODUCTION

Digital media infiltrates our daily lives as well as the economy, and changes the way we interact, connect and work with each other. A life without technologies such as the Internet or smartphones are unimaginable in today's society, as they provide necessary information and a working ground for our daily activities. There is a growing concern about the possible forms of technology addiction, as people become dependent on them. For instance, the technology company Apple Inc. now shows weekly reports of their smartphone user's behaviour by displaying their screen time on applications in order to raise awareness of their behaviour. This shows that behavioral addiction to technology has become more prevalent (Apple Inc, 2018).

Technology addiction can be seen as a form of behavioural addiction that involves human-machine interaction, which can be passive or active (Griffiths, 1995). While there exists no uniform instrument of measurement for technology addiction, researchers have been studying various kinds of self-report scales, which focus on different technology areas. These areas include Internet, videogaming, smartphone, social network sites (SNS), television and other forms of technology, which were studied for a period of over 20 years. For the specific areas, there are commonly used scales but most of them lack conceptual definitions and criterias. The reason for this is that there exist various criteria and methodologies that make it difficult to constitute to one scale, leading to a large diversion of data (De-Sola et al., 2016).

There are certain classification manuals that group mental diseases such as behavioral addictions with criterias to provide a certain foundation for. Examples of such classification handbooks are the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fifth Edition (DSM-V), which is the dominating classification handbook concerning mental disorders in the USA published by the American Psychological Association (APA); and the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems in the tenth revision (ICD-10), which is the leading medical classification list by the World Health Organization (WHO). For instance, behavioral addictions such as pathological gambling or Internet gaming disorder are defined in the section of "substance-related disorders and addictive disorders" in the DSM-V.

When dealing with prevalence and cut-off points for technology addictions, studies in different areas were conducted. For Internet addiction, prevalence data ranges from 0.8% to 26.7% (Kuss et al., 2014), whereas for smartphone addiction, prevalence ranges from 0.4% to 64.5% (De-Sola et al., 2016). This prevalence spread exists as a result of different measuring instruments, which are not uniform to each other and based on differing criteria. Moreover, different cut-off points for the same instruments vary from study to study. In addition, different prevalences can also be explained as the samples of people being studied focus on different age groups (De-Sola et al., 2016; Kuss et al., 2014).

The current situation shows that different studies researched different kinds of technology addictions by providing various instruments to measure the addiction. However, no uniform criteria or definition exists for technology addiction. As a result, linkages between dimensions across different areas of technology addiction has not been investigated on a larger basis to develop a uniform measuring instrument. Lortie and Guitton (2013) examined the dimensional structure between different Internet addiction scales in order to establish similar and dissimilar dimensions. Seven common Internet addiction dimensions were extracted and compared to criteria of common classification handbooks.

It is important to investigate the linkages between different areas of technology addiction. With that, better instruments can be developed to measure technology addiction, which can be used by the research community.

1.1 The Present Study

The objective of this study was to systematically review the current state of research concerning the dimensional structure of information-communication technology (ICT) use addiction scales. The primary focus was to determine the distribution of the dimensions of behavioural addiction across scales measuring ICT use addiction. Extending from this objective, three secondary objectives were identified:

- 1. Determine the dimensions of behavioural addiction relevant to ICT use.
- 2. Locate ICT use addiction scales utilised in research.
- 3. Apply a behavioural addiction model, developed on the basis of the first sub-objective, to determine the dimensions of behavioural addiction in each of the identified scales.

In order to fulfill the research objectives, a systematic literature search was conducted to extract relevant technology addiction instruments in the area of Internet, smartphone, video games and SNS.

2. A CONCEPTUAL MODEL OF THE DIMENSIONS OF TECHNOLOGY USE ADDICTION

To establish a conceptual model for technology addiction scales, the following section provides definitions for behavioral- as well as technology addictions and the classification of areas in this study. Moreover, an overview of clinical classification handbooks concerning substance abuse will be provided. Additionally, in this Section dimensions of models dealing with Internet-, behavioral- and technology addiction will be compared and matched to consider the alignment between these different criteria to provide a foundation for the subsequent analysis.

2.1. Behavioral Addiction

Substance abuse, as a form of addiction, has long been studied in a number of academic domains and, consequently, diagnostic criteria are well established (Griffiths, 1995; Lortie and Guitton, 2013) Examples of such diagnostic criteria include the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems in the tenth revision (ICD-10), which is the leading medical classification list by the World Health Organization (WHO). Additionally, the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fifth Edition (DSM-V) is the dominating classification handbook concerning mental disorders, such as substance abuse in the USA, which is published by the American Psychological Association (APA) and defines psychiatric diagnosis of mental disorders (APA, 2018).

In contrast, behavioural addictions have traditionally received less research attention. In a seminal article Griffiths (1995) provided one of the first definitions for technology addiction, as a class of behavioural addiction. In discussing the conceptual linkages with substance addictions Griffiths (1995) defines technology addiction as a form of behavioural addiction that involves human-machine interaction. The interaction can be either passive without active engagement or active with involvement. Passive interactions include watching television or listening to music, while active interactions can be playing video games or slot machines. The two forms of behavioral addiction contain certain characteristics to strengthen obsession. For example, video games are designed in a way to play more than intended. In considering the clinical diagnostic criteria of substance addiction Griffiths (2005) concluded that addictions consist of six common components: *salience, mood modification, tolerance, withdrawal symptoms, conflict,* and *relapse*. According to Griffiths (2005) is relevant, as it is the first model of its kind dealing with behavioural addiction and will be compared later on to another model dealing with Internet dimensions in this study. Table 1 provides necessary information about relevant classifications to give a brief overview.

Reference	Title	Description
WHO (1992)	ICD-10	International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems in the tenth revision, which is the leading medical classification list by the World Health Organization.
Griffiths (1995)	Technological addictions	One of the first definitions for technology addiction. Technology addiction is defined as a form of behavioural addiction that involves human-machine interaction, which can be either active or passive.
APA (1994)	DSM-IV	The Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM) is the dominating classification handbook concerning mental disorders in the USA published by the American Psychological Association in the fourth edition.
APA (2000)	DSM-IV-TR	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fourth edition, textrevision. Nine diagnostic criteria were added and diagnostic criteria were modified.
Griffiths (2005)	"Component" model	First model of its kind dealing with behavioural addiction. Consist of the following six components: salience, mood modification, tolerance, withdrawal symptoms, conflict, and relapse.
Lortie and Guitton (2013)	Internet addiction assessment tools	Examined the dimensional structure of Internet addiction scales by pooling them into seven dimensions and mapping these to the DSM-IV-TR and ICD-10. One of the seven dimension could not be mapped to the DSM-IV-TR or ICD-10.
APA (2013)	DSM-V	Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fifth edition, which is the dominating classification handbook in the USA published by the American Psychological Association. Changes are, that the section dealing with "substance-related disorders" now includes "addictive disorders".
(WHO (2018)	ICD-11	The current, internationally valid edition is ICD-10, but a first version of a future ICD-11 was published in June 2018. According to the WHO, this new version is to be adopted at the World Health Assembly in May 2019 and will come into effect in 2022.

Table 1. History of Classification

As this study mentioned the behavioural addiction model of Griffiths (2005) above, it is now important to move over to the model of Lortie and Guitton (2013) concerning Internet addiction, as it compares dimensions leading medical classification handbooks. Even though Internet addiction seems not to fit in perfectly, it is a form of technology addiction and will form the basis for further analysis.

Lortie and Guitton (2013) examined the dimensional structure of Internet addiction scales by analysing 14 such scales published between January 1993 and October 2011. The authors used a bottom-up approach, which is a method to sort specific groups into more general categories. The factors of the chosen Internet addiction scales were first identified. Then the dimensions were combined into broader dimensions of addiction, related to their theoretical analogy. After the process, the authors had 67 different factors, which then were pooled into the following seven dimensions: "compulsive Internet use", "salience", "withdrawal", "mood regulation", "escapism" and "social comfort". For example, factors such as "excessive use" and "loss of control" where mapped to the dimension "compulsive use". After the pooling of the dimensions, the authors compared the seven dimensions with the diagnostic criteria for substance use disorder and pathological gambling of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders in the fourth textrevision (DSM-IV-TR) and ICD-10. The DSM-IV-TR and ICD-10 criteria were matched to six of the proposed seven dimensions. The dimension "social comfort" was not matched to the DSM-IV-TR or ICD-10 as the handbooks do not include criterias for a preference of online interaction. This is interesting, as it shows that the dimension "social comfort" is unique in Internet addiction and should be used as a dimension for scale development.

To establish a solid alignment for technology addiction scales, this review compared and extracted the dimensions used in Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model against the DSM-V criteria for substance disorders as well as the dimensions proposed in the "Component" model of Griffiths (2005).

Subsequent to the publication of Lortie and Guitton (2013), a new version of the DSM, the DSM-V has been published. It contains four new criteria for substance use disorder in addition to the seven existing criteria. While seven of the 11 criteria in the DSM-V are the same as those in the DSM-IV-TR, four new dimensions are introduced. To consider this update, these four new criteria were compared in relation to Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model. Table 2 indicates the criteria from the DSM-V of substance use disorder.

Additionally, owing to its prominence in the literature, Griffiths (2005) "Component" model was also mapped to Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model. To consider the alignment between the different criteria and dimensions used in the various sources, this study extracted the criterions and description from the DSM-V (APA, 2013), the dimensions and descriptions from Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model as well as the dimensions and description of the "Component" model from Griffiths (2005). Table 2-4, present a summary of the analysis. It shows, how the different kind of criterias and dimensions have similarities and divergences in their wording. This is important, as the descriptions will be considered to compare the dimensions. Considering the ICD-10, a new version, the eleventh revision of the ICD (ICD-11) will be published in late 2019. To this date, the ICD-11 criteria are not considered as it is not released yet.

Criteria		Description
Impaired control (IC)	IC1	The individual may take the substance in larger amounts or over a longer period than was originally intended.
	IC2	The individual may express a persistent desire to cut down or regulate substance use and may report multiple unsuccessful efforts to decrease or discontinue use.
	IC3	The individual may spend a great deal of time obtaining the substance, using the substance, or recovering from its effects.
	IC4	Craving is manifested by an intense desire or urge for the drug that may occur at any time but is more likely when in an environment where the drug previously was obtained or used. Craving has also been shown to involve classical conditioning and is associated with activation of specific reward structures in the brain. Craving is queried by asking if there has ever been a time when they had such strong urges to take the drug that they could not think of anything else. Current craving is often used as a treatment outcome measure because it may be a signal of impending relapse.
Social impairment (SI)	SI5	Recurrent substance use may result in a failure to fulfill major role obligations at work, school, or home.
	SI6	The individual may continue substance use despite having persistent or recurrent social or interpersonal problems caused or exacerbated by the effects of the substance.
	SI7	Important social, occupational, or recreational activities may be given up or reduced because of substance use.
Risky use of the substance (RS)	RS8	This may take the form of recurrent substance use in situations in which it is physically hazardous.
	RS9	The individual may continue substance use despite knowledge of having a persistent or recurrent physical or psychological problem that is likely to have been caused or exacerbated by the substance.
Pharmalogical criteria (PC)	PC10	Tolerance, as defined by either of the following: (a) A need for markedly increased amounts of the substance to achieve intoxication or the desired effect or (b) Markedly diminished effect with continued use of the same amount of the substance.
	PC11	Withdrawal, as manifested by either of the following: (a) the characteristic withdrawal syndrome for the substance, or (b) the same (or closely related) substance is taken to relieve or avoid withdrawal symptoms.

Table 2. DSM-V	Criteria –	Substance	Use	Disorder	(APA,	2010)
----------------	------------	-----------	-----	----------	-------	-------

Dimension	Description
(1) Salience	This refers to when the particular activity becomes the most important activity in the person's life and dominates their thinking feelings (cravings) and behaviour (deterioration of socialized behaviour).
(2) Mood modification	This refers to the subjective experience that people report as a consequence of engaging in the particular activity (i.e. they experience an arousing 'buzz' or a 'high' or paradoxically a tranquillizing and/or destressing feel of 'escape' or 'numbing').
(3) Tolerance	This refers to the process whereby increasing amounts of the particular activity are required to achieve the former effects.
(4) Withdrawal symptoms	These refer to the unpleasant feeling states and/or physical effects which occur when the particular activity is discontinued or suddenly reduced. Such withdrawal effects may be psychological (e.g. extreme moodiness and irritability) or more physiological (e.g. nausea, sweats, headaches, insomnia and other stress-related reactions).
(5) Conflict	This refers to conflicts between the addict and those around them (interpersonal conflict) or from within the individual themselves (intrapsychic conflict) which are concerned with the particular activity. Continual choosing of short-term pleasure and relief leads to disregard of adverse consequences and long-term damage which in turn increases the apparent need for the addictive activity as a coping strategy. The conflict in the addict's life means that they end up compromising their (1) personal relationships (partner, children, relatives, friends, etc.), (2) working or educational lives (depending on what age they are) and (3) other social and recreational activities. Intrapsychic conflict may also be experienced in the form of addicts knowing that they are engaged heavily in the behaviour and want to cut down or stop – but find they are unable to do so, experiencing a subjective loss of control.
(6) Relapse	This refers to the tendency for repeated reversions to earlier patterns of the particular activity to recur and for even the most extreme patterns typical of the height of the addiction to be quickly restored after many years of abstinence or control.

Dimension	Description
(1) Compulsive Internet use	Compulsive use is synonym for tolerance and the inability to control, reduce or stop online behavior.
(2) Negative outcomes	Negative outcomes are deleterious consequences of excessive Internet use.
(3) Salience	Salience stands for salience and cognitive preoccupation.
(4) Withdrawal symptoms	Withdrawal symptoms are felt when not online.
(5) Mood regulation	Mood regulation means that the Internet is used to regulate the mood.
(6) Escapism	Escapism means that the Internet is used to escape from other problems.
(7) Social comfort	Social comfort refers to a preference for online social interaction.

Table 4. Lortie and Guitton's model (2013)

2.2. Mapping the Dimensional Structure

The review aims to find linkages between the described models below and their dimensions and criteria. For this, the process of mapping was done, where dimensions of one model were compared to each other and linked into a visual graph. The reason why the models were compared and matched is to find a basis for the main dimensions in the following analysis and to establish a solid justification. Lorties and Guittons (2013) dimensions fit the DSM-V criterions as well as the dimensions of Griffiths (2005) "Component" model in a commensurate way. This study used the proposed seven dimensions from Lortie and Guitton (2013) in the analysis to follow, to map the dimensions for the technology addiction scales in a top-down approach.

To map the DSM-V (APA, 2013) criteria and the dimensions of the "Component" model (Griffiths, 2005) to Lorties and Guittons (2013) model, Table 1-3 were used to compare the descriptions and wording of the dimensions. The result can be seen in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Comparison of Models

Due to the conceptual overlap in the constructs considered IC4 from the DSM-V -"craving"- was mapped to the "salience" dimension in Lortie and Guitton (2013). "Salience" is defined as a cognitive preoccupation, while, in the DSM-V, "craving" refers to a strong desire or urge to use a specific drug.

SI5 states that recurrent substance use leads to important obligations not being met at work, school or at home. It was mapped to the dimension "negative outcomes" as it is a consequence of the use. SI6 describing the continued use of substances despite persistent or reappearing negative consequences, was also mapped to the construct "negative outcomes". RUS8 states that the substance is used repeatedly in conditions that are physically harmful. Therefore, it was mapped to the dimension of "negative outcomes".

The dimension "salience" from Griffiths "component" model was mapped to "salience" within Lortie and Guitton's model, as both dimensions refer to an individual's cognitive preoccupation.

The dimension "tolerance" from Griffiths "component" model was mapped to "compulsive use" within Lortie and Guitton's model. "compulsive use" as defined in Lortie and Guitton (2013) is a synonym for tolerance, which indicates that the person can not control, reduce or stop the behavior.

The dimension "withdrawal symptoms" from Griffiths "component" model was mapped to "withdrawal symptoms" of Lortie and Guitton model, as it describes the same perception when the activity is reduced. The "relapse" dimension from Griffiths' "component" model was mapped to the dimensions "negative outcomes" and "compulsive use" from Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model. "Relapse" means a tendency to recurrent patterns even after years of abstinence from the activity. That is why it fits negative outcomes because the person could fall into this pattern after a period of abstinence. Moreover, it fits "compulsive use" because it describes the inability to control. Similarly, Griffiths' "conflict" dimension was also mapped to "negative outcomes" of Lortie and Guitton's model. "Conflict" is defined as the personal as well as external conflict with other persons, in which personal relationships, work or school activities and personal pursuits suffer. The dimension "mood modification" of Griffiths "component" model was mapped to "mood regulation" of Lortie and Guitton model as both dimensions change the subjective mood through the activity.

Lortie and Guitton (2013) included a seventh dimension, 'social comfort'---defined as the preferable way for online communication, which was not matched to any of the criterions of the DSM-V or to any dimensions of Griffiths (2005) "component" model.

2.3. Technology Addiction as a Form of Behavioural Addiction

As described in Section 2.1. Griffiths (1995) defined technology addiction as a form of behavioural addiction that involves human-machine interaction, which can be passive or active. This definition was established 24 years ago and is considered in this study to be too general, as new technology evolved through the time.

In order to establish technology addiction as an overarching category for behavioural addictions, two boundaries are made. Firstly, the used technology must be in the broadest way an information-communication technology (ICT). Parry (2019) refers to ICTs as technology artefacts, including two categories: hardware or devices (e.g. smartphones, laptops) and services or software (e.g. web

browsers, SNSs). Secondly, the behavioral addiction considered should imply the use of the technology as this study concerns ICT use behaviour as a form of behavioural addiction. Within ICT's this study considered technologies such as video gaming, virtual reality or SNS. Technologies like file transfer protocol or ethernet are not included as they do not imply the use of the technology.

Specifically, this review considers four categories of behavioural addiction within technology addiction: Internet-, smartphone-, SNS- and video gaming addiction. These technologies are used because they have a great influence on daily life. Currently worldwide, there are 4.38 billion Internet-, 2.53 billion smartphone-, 2.62 billion SNS and 2.2 billion videogaming users involved (McDonald, 2017; Miniwatts Marketing Group, 2019; Statistica Inc, 2019a; Statistica Inc, 2019b).

2.4. Areas of Technology Addiction

This section gives an overview about the definitions of the four proposed areas of technology addiction. There is a lack of conceptual definitions that deal with technology addiction, and therefore, established definitions of the individual areas have been determined by analyzing literature reviews.

Internet addiction is defined by a person using the Internet excessively and impulsively without controlling this usage which leads to interferences and distress in life (Shaw and Black, 2008), whereas smartphone addiction is defined as exorbitant use of smartphones which result in limitations of the social- as well as the working life. Reliance and tolerance factors as seen in addictive disorders are also included (Elhai et al., 2018). SNS addiction is defined by a person that is primarily occupied with SNS, having a strong desire to use SNS, and where overuse leads to impairments in relationships, mental health, working and study environments (Andreassen and Pallesen, 2014).

Whereas Internet, smartphone and SNS addiction lack a proper conceptual definition, videogaming addiction is defined in the DSM-V (APA, 2013). A new part of the DSM-V indicates that the section dealing with "substance-related disorders" was changed to "substance-related disorders and addictive disorders" (APA, 2013). It includes for the first time non-substance addictions like pathological gambling in the main text. Moreover, Internet gaming disorder (IGD) as a behavioral addiction was included and defined in the auxiliary section of the DSM-V, which needs further investigation to include in the main section. The reason for this, is that in contrast to pathological gambling, which is very well researched, IGD is not (Griffiths et al., 2014). IGD is defined as playing games by using the Internet in a repetitive and persistent way, often involving playing with other people. This leads to constraints when five or more of the following nine criteria are met over a 12 month period: (i) thinking about the gaming activity in daily life; (ii) symptoms of withdrawal when it is not possible to play games; (iii) more time is needed to spend with Internet games (tolerance); (iv) attempts to control the behavior has previously failed; (v) other recreational activities and hobbies are discarded; (vi) overuse despite of social problems; (vii) lying about the time spend with Internet games; (viii) using Internet games to change negative feelings or escape from problems; (ix) endangering or losing a working position or a personal relationship due to excessive Internet gaming. When the Internet is used for other activities in the profession or business world, it is not included. Moreover, gambling over the Internet is not included as the DSM-V puts it into the gambling disorder section (APA, 2013).

One could argue, that the areas are overlapping in some points, particularly between Internet- and SNS addiction, as well as Internet- and smartphone addiction. De-Sola et al. (2016) found out that smartphone addiction shows a significant difference in user behavior when compared to Internet addiction. Therefore, Internet- and smartphone addiction can be separated, whilst SNS and Internet-addiction are more intersecting. The Internet addiction scale "Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents" measures among other points the use of SNS (Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2013).

3. METHODOLOGY

In this study a systematic literature search was conducted following guidelines provided by Webster and Watson (2002) and von Brocke et al. (2009). According to Webster and Watson (2002) a systematic literature search involves searching for relevant scientific articles through either keyword searches in bibliographic databases or forward and backward searches from relevant articles. A forward search reviews sources that have cited the article whereas a backward search means that references cited in an article are examined. The search topic was defined as "Technology addiction scales in the areas of Internet, smartphone, video games and social network sites". The following ections outline the procedures adopted to locate and extract relevant self-report scales for technology addiction.

3.1. Inclusion Criteria

Studies were included if they (i) developed a scale for technology addiction in the areas of Internet-, SNS-, video game- and smartphone addiction; (ii) did not only done entirely a validation and language translation to English of an existing scale; (iii) are reported in English; (iv) are either published in a research magazine or book; and (v) were conducted between 2007 and August 2018 except for Internet addiction scales. The time frame for (v) was adopted because the widespread adoption of the smartphone in 2007 marked the area for potential smartphone addiction and a new kind of communication (West and Mace, 2010). For Internet addiction scales, a time frame between 1996 and August 2018 (the time of data collection) was selected, as the first scales of Internet addiction were discussed and developed by Young (1996, 1998a, 1998b).

3.2. Search Strategy

A specific search string consisting of 12 components was developed (see Figure 2). These 12 components include three main clauses (1, 2 and 3), each containing a variable aiming at the four types of technology addiction (I, II, III, and IV) as defined in this study (Internet, smartphone, SNS and video games). The three main clauses are separated by two OR operators and contain specific keywords for each clause. Moreover, the variable included in each main clause contains specific keyword combinations for the four mentioned types of technology. These types are separated with three OR operators and use appropriate synonyms to yield more results.



Figure 2. Search Query

As depicted in Figure 2, the first main clause concerns the consequences of specific technology addiction, and is formulated in a broader way due to the fact that most authors use existing scales in order to build new self-developed scales to measure technology addiction. The main clause contains three subparts which are separated with two AND operators. The AND operator means that all search terms must appear in the resulting records. The first subpart contains synonym keywords dealing with consequences, which are separated with an OR operator. Subpart two is the variable, containing the four areas of technology addiction. The last subpart contains search words aiming at addiction, separated by OR operators. Synonyms like habit or obsession are used.

The second main clause aims to yield results for technology addiction scales and contains three subparts, separated by two AND operators. Part one is the variable. Subpart two contains terms and synonyms dealing with addiction like in the main clause one and subpart three contains search words aiming at words and synonyms for 'scale' (e.g., scale, questionnaire, inventory).

The third main clause covers the development of technology addiction scales and contains four subparts, separated with two AND and one OR operator. The first subpart contains the keywords 'development' or 'creating' to find records which concerned the development of a new scale. Subpart two is the variable as described previously. The third subpart deals with search strings for addiction, which were described previously. The last subpart is a keyword combination of synonyms for 'scale' as described in the main clause two. The one OR operator is connected between the

variable and subpart three dealing with addiction. The reason for using one OR operator is to yield more results dealing with addiction.

Where appropriate search terms included an asterisk at the end as a wildcard operator to include prefixes for the given string. For instance, the database will search for the search word 'problem*' by including terms such as 'problematic' or 'problems' as well.

The literature search using the above mentioned search query was conducted within a three-week period in August 2018 using the following nine scientific databases to extract papers: GoogleScholar (n = 620), ScienceDirect (n = 1052), PubMed (n = 893), EmeraldInsight (n = 381), Wiley (n = 136), SpringerLink (n = 355), ACM (n = 225), iEEE (n = 532) and JSTOR (n = 504). Given the length of the search string, and the restrictions of the databases considered, the query was run separately for each of the variables (representing the technologies considered) where restrictions were implemented.

3.3. Data Extraction and Management

The bibliographic information and full-text records of each result were downloaded and stored reference management software (Zotero version 5). All duplicated results were noted and deleted. After that, titles and abstracts were reviewed against the inclusion criteria described in Section 3.1.

3.4. Search Results

4698 results were found using the search strategy. After removing duplicates (n = 1676), the remaining results (n = 3022) were examined by title and abstract for inclusion and ineligible papers (n = 2909) were removed. Next, the full-texts of the remaining papers (n = 114) were examined and a total of 58 papers met the inclusion criteria. After extracting relevant information of the scales for analyzing dimensions, papers (n = 8) were removed because of missing information, leaving a final sample of 50 papers (see Appendix 1 for an overview of the studies included). Figure 3 depicts the process of data collection.



Figure 3. Flowchart for Study Inclusion

3.5. Included Scales

Initially, 58 scales were considered. Subsequently, two scales were excluded because they concerned the revision of an existing scale, without altering the dimensional structure (e.g., Kwon et al., 2013b; Lin et al., 2017). Additionally, Lemmens et al. (2009) developed a video gaming addiction scale and a shorter version of the proposed scale. The shorter version was not considered in this study. In contrast, the paper from Kuss et al. (2018), updated the "Problematic Mobile Phone Use Questionnaire" which was included in this review as the dimensional structure of the scale was altered. A dimension concerning finance was deleted and a new dimension dealing with dangerous use was added into the updated scale. Smetaniuk (2014) developed two scales for smartphone addiction, which both were included, as they target different dimensions.

After extracting relevant data concerning the scale dimensions and questionnaires, six scales did not contain the necessary information (Alabi, 2013; Buono et al., 2016; Cam, 2012; Chow et al., 2009; Nichols and Nicki, 2004; Wolniczak et al., 2013). After looking at the supplementary material as well as the appendix and not finding the information, the authors were contacted through ResearchGate on the 13.03.2019 to provide the information. After a time frame of two weeks, none of the authors replied and provided the necessary information. Therefore, these six scales were not taken into account.

3.6. Analysis Procedures

The purpose of this analysis was to determine firstly, the dimensional structure between different kinds of technology addiction scales and, secondly, to find linkages between these scales. The extracted data of the scale dimensions were categorized on the basis of Lortie and Guitton's (2013) dimensions as described before. For this, a table was created, with the scale name, dimensions of the developed scale and items assigned to the dimensions of the scale. Each of the assigned items were matched to one of the seven dimensions of Lortie and Guitton's (2013) model and, where a match was not possible, new dimensions were proposed. The outcomes of this mapping process are described in Section 4.2.1. In addition, to consider linkages between scales, the authors' descriptions of the basis for their scale were identified and mapped as a network. The outcomes of this process are presented in Section 4.3.

4. ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

The following sections outline the analysis and findings of the review. Firstly, the extracted data of the scales is analyzed. For that, demographic data as well as information about technology addiction scales are examined. Secondly, the dimensional linkages and structure of the scales are investigated by mapping the items to the models as described in 4.2.1. Thirdly, the relationships between the extracted technology scales are analyzed with a network graph to check which scale is influenced by other scales and given criteria.

4.1. Sample Description

The 50 extracted technology addiction scales were divided into four categories ---smartphone (20; 40%), Internet (14; 28%), video games (12; 24%), SNS (4; 8%)--- with each scale falling in only a single category. Figure 4 provides an overview of the year of publication and technology concerned for each of the scales considered. It is evident that the largest number of scales considered were published in 2012 and 2014 (each n = 6). Additionally, the figure illustrates the increase in the production of such scales over the period, with only 11 scales published between 1998 and 2008 and 39 between 2008 and 2018, an increase of 354.55%.

Of the 50 scales, 43 are using samples of only one country, whereas five scales use sample data from more than one country. Finally, the development of two scales did not involve the use of a relevant sample or dataset (Young, 1998b; Vadlin et al., 2015) and were, as a consequence, marked with 'NA'. Because five scales were using more than one country in their sample, the number of countries is greater than the 50 scales considered. 68 total and 27 unique countries distributed across 48 scales were used in the development of the scales considered. The scales samples were collected in Europe (n = 28) followed by Asia (n = 10) and North America (n = 15) whereas scales are least developed with samples on Africa and South America (both n = 1). Moreover, the scales were spread across 31 different publications, with the largest proportion of scales published in the journal "Cyberpsychology, Behaviour and Social Networking" (n = 8), followed by "PloS One" (n = 6) and "Computers in Human Behaviour" (n = 3).

Out of the 50 scales, 47 were modified, while three did not indicate an existing basis. From the 50 scales, a total of 971 items were extracted. The minimum number of items per scale is six, the maximum is 52 and the average is 19.42 (SD = 8.91). Concerning the number of items per scale, six of the scales were using 20 items, five scales were using 18 items and the other five scales were using eight items.

The extracted scales were analysed to determine the nature of the sample upon which they were tested. Overall, four sample groups were identified: Children, going to school and under the age of 18; students going to university; adults who are working; and the category 'other', which contains special groups that do not fit the above mentioned three groups. One example for the 'other' group are members of an internet addiction support group (Armstrong et al., 2000). Some scales were used with multiple groups. Of the 50 scales, 39 were used with one of the above-mentioned groups, ten with more than one group, and for one no empirical data were collected (Young, 1998a). The largest

proportion of the scales were used with students (n = 22), followed by adults (n = 17), children (n = 14) and 'other '(n = 13).

In some cases, scales partially address addiction in their proposed dimensions and measured other dimensions as well. For instance, the "Mobile Phone Affinity Scale" (Bock et al., 2016a) not only measured addiction but also connectedness and productivity. These dimensions were also taken into account and mapped in the process as described in Section 4.2.1.



Figure 4. Technology Addiction scales per Year

4.2. Dimensional Foundation

The following section describes the process of the mapping and to what extent new dimensions emerged. Additionally, the data of the mapped items is described by providing an overview.

4.2.1. Dimensional Mapping

The basis of this study is the dimensional mapping and the foundation is provided by the dimensional models of Lortie and Guitton (2013), mapped to the DSM-V (APA, 2013) and Griffiths (2005)'s Component Model as described in Section 2.3. The 971 extracted items were mapped to one of the seven dimensions in Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model, with each item only mapped to a single dimension. If the mapping from item to dimension was unclear, the mapped dimensions and descriptions of the DSM-V and Griffiths (2005) "Component" Model were considered as orientation points (see Figure 1, Table 1-3). When it was not possible to map an item to any of the proposed dimensions, the item was marked with the new dimension "no dimension". Each mapped item was rated on a scale of confidence level (low, middle, high) by the primary researcher. After the initial mapping, a meeting with two independent coders was arranged to determine the accuracy of the mapping. Each item was checked from the lowest to the highest level of confidence. When there were discrepancies regarding the dimension, the suitable dimension was chosen by majority vote between the three researchers. After the initial review, 38 items were mapped to "no dimension" from 12 scales, divided into 5 Internet-, 3 smartphone-, 2 video game- and 2 SNS-addiction scales

(Armstrong et al., 2000; Bock et al., 2016a; Charlton and Danforth, 2007; Cho and Lee, 2015; Elphinston and Noller, 2011; Liu and Ma, 2018; Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2013; Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2014; Rotunda, et al., 2003; Thatcher and Goolam, 2005; Yılmaz et al., 2017; Young, 1998a). Figure 5 depicts the initial mapping.

When comparing the agreement between the two independent coders and the primary author, 828 out of the 971 items, were in agreement (85.27 %). To measure the inter-rater agreement, Cohen's kappa was calculated as it takes the possibility of agreement occuring by chance. The Cohen's kappa is 0.813, which provides a strong level of agreement (McHugh, 2012).



Figure 5. Dimensional distribution after initial reviewing

During three rounds of review new codes were developed to account for items not captured by the seven a priori dimensions. In the first round, six new codes were established. *Utility and function loss*, which refers to the limitation of an individual's functionality without a specific technology. For instance, an example of such an item is: "If I don't have a mobile phone, my friends would find it hard to get in touch with me off during a class, at the cinema, or in a theatre" (Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2014). *Intention to use in the future* which describes to use the ICT in the future. *Descriptive of use behaviour* describes how a person interacts with the technology, such as "I have met new people through this kind of entertainments OVG or SNS" (Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2013). *Personality*, was used to refer to when a person is more comfortable using technology than rather dealing with people. Finally, "*irrelevant*" was used to code items which were not relevant, such as "Asheron's Call jargon sounds stupid to me" (Charlton and Danforth, 2007). The author and the coders considered each of these codes and decided whether it was possible to extend them or to fit them into an existing dimension. Additionally, the new dimension code "futility" was established, describing, that life without technology is monotonous. Due to the issue, that five items from the salience dimension contained aspects of "futility", these items were changed to "futility".

The coders and the author noticed that some items of the "descriptive of use behaviour" code had a certain pattern dealing with *cognitive absorption*, which refers to "a state of deep involvement with software" (Agarwal and Karahanna, 2000, p. 665). An example of this would be: "I almost forget all the other things when using social media" (Koc and Gulyagci, 2013). The use of these items suggest that too be addicted to a specific use behaviour, it should be cognitively absorbing. This is because

the criteria, 'cognitive absorption' does not fit the general substance abuse addiction. According to Agarwal and Karahanna (2000), cognitive absorption involves five dimensions: (i) temporal resolution in which passage of time is not registered; (ii) total immersion in the activity where other basic needs are ignored; (iii) intensified pleasure in doing the activity; (iv) the user's perception of being responsible for the interaction; and (v) curiosity that responds to sensory and cognitive sensitivities. In round two, "cognitive absorption" was added as an additional category. From the originally 22 "descriptive of use behaviour" codes, nine were changed to "cognitive absorption" codes.

After mapping the new dimension of cognitive absorption, the author reconsidered the 971 mapped items and checked whether there were items to map to cognitive absorption (round 3). Seven were adjusted accordingly. The coders reconsidered the dimension "futility" in the third round and mapped these to the dimension "salience". Table 5 summarises the three coding rounds.

Dimension	1. Round (n)	2. Round (n)	3. Round (n)
Descriptive of use behaviour	22	13	13
Utility and function loss	13	13	13
Intention to use in the Future	1	1	1
Personality	1	1	1
Irrelevant	1	1	1
Cognitive absorption	0	9	16
Futility	5	5	0
Total	43	43	45

Table 5. Coding Rounds

4.2.2. Description of Dimensional Structure

A total of 971 items were extracted and mapped to the dimensions considered, with 316 (32.54 %) Internet-, 408 (42.02 %) smartphone-, 197 (20.20 %) video game- and 50 (5.15 %) SNS-items. 13 dimensions were used, seven belonging to Lortie and Guitton's model (2013) as described in Section 2.3 and six new dimensions as described in Section 4.2.1. The majority of items (n = 921) were mapped to the seven dimensions from Lortie and Guitton's model (2013) while 50 items were mapped to the six new dimensions.

The three most used dimensions were compulsive use (n = 287), followed by negative outcomes (n = 279) and withdrawal symptoms (n = 126) while the three least used were "intention to use in the future", "personality" and "irrelevant" with only one mapped item per dimension. Table 6 represents the distribution of the dimensions across the four technologies considered. The percentages represent the proportion of items for each technology mapped to a particular dimension. For instance, the Internet area contains 316 items, where 91 items belong to compulsive use with 28.80%.

The final column represents the mean score and standard deviation of a specific dimension across the four technology addiction areas in percentage. The dimensions "compulsive use" and "negative outcomes" accounts to 54.65% of the mean score, which is the majority. From Lortie and Guitton (2013)'s model, the dimensions "social comfort" and "escapism" were used less.

Dimension	Internet n (%)	Smartphone n (%)	SNS n (%)	Video game n (%)	Total n	Mean % (SD)
Compulsive use	91 (28.80)	123 (30.15)	9 (18.00)	64 (32.49)	287	27.36 (6.42)
Negative outcomes	85 (26.90)	130 (31.86)	12 (24.00)	52 (26.40)	279	27.29 (3.30)
Withdrawal symptoms	28 (8.86)	69 (16.91)	9 (18.00)	20 (10.15)	126	13.48 (4.64)
Salience	42 (13.29)	26 (6.37)	3 (6.00)	25 (12.69)	96	9.59 (3.94)
Mood regulation	20 (6.33)	22 (5.39)	7 (14.00)	8 (4.06)	57	7.45 (4.47)
Escapism	25 (7.91)	4 (0.98)	0 (0.00)	16 (8.12)	45	4.25 (4.36)
Social comfort	15 (4.75)	15 (3.68)	6 (12.00)	0 (0.00)	36	5.11 (5.03)
Cognitive absorption	2 (0.63)	5 (1.23)	3 (6.00)	6 (3.05)	16	2.73 (2.41)
Descriptive of use behaviour	7 (2.22)	0 (0.00)	1 (2.00)	5 (2.54)	13	1.69 (1.15)
Utility and function loss	0 (0.00)	13 (3.19)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	13	0.80 (1.60)
Irrelevant	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	1 (0.51)	1	0.13 (0.26)
Intention to use in the future	0(0.00)	1 (0.25)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	1	0.06 (0.13)
Personality	1 (0.32)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	1	0.08 (0.16)
Total per area n (%)	316 (100)	408 (100)	50 (100)	197 (100)	971	

Table 6. Dimensional Distribution of Items

Smartphone addiction scales are using the dimensions "negative outcomes" and "utility and function loss" to a greater extent, whereas SNS addiction scales deal more with the dimensions of "withdrawal symptoms" and "social comfort". Moreover, video game addiction scales deal more with dimensions of "escapism" and "compulsive use". In addition, "escapism" did not appear in the area of SNS and barely in smartphones. Nine studies only included one dimension and seven studies only focused on three. As a consequence, this raises questions about the validity of some scales.

4.3. Relationship Network Mapping

In order to analyze on what kind source the 50 extracted scale were based on, necessary data was captured by reading the scale's paper and, if possible, extracting the sources. Extracted sources were put into a table and a unique key was assigned. Two categories were identified, internal sources which are the 50 extracted scales of this study and external sources, which are different criteria or scales. Internal scales were assigned unique IDs as seen in Appendix 1. When an internal scale was based on the same scale or criteria, the unique key could be reused. Every external scale was given a unique key between 51-127 (see Appendix 2). Moreover, Appendix 3 shows which scales or criteria influenced the 50 extracted scales.

Thereafter, a network graph was produced to visualize the influence of the scales (see Figure 6). A graph is made up of nodes which are connected by edges. Nodes represent the scales whereas edges represent the relationship between the scales. In the graph, only direct edges are used, meaning that every edge is pointing to a node. A pointing arrow means that the outgoing node influences the node the arrow is pointing to. Blue nodes represent the internal scales whereas red and green nodes represent external criteria/scales. Moreover, green nodes represent DSM criteria. Internal (blue) and external (red) scales can point to internal (blue) scales, whereas internal (blue) scales can not point to external (red) scales. In other words, the graph only shows which other sources internal scales are

based on. The reason why the influence of external scales on each other is not measured, is that it would go beyond the scope of this study.



Figure 6. Network Graph

The 50 extracted scales are based on 104 external and 30 internal scales, of which 90 are unique. 20 extracted scales are based on DSM criteria: 11 are based on the DSM-V, eight on the DSM-IV and six on the DSM-IV-TR. The DSM disorder of pathological gambling was used five times in the DSM-IV-TR and four times in the DSM-IV. Table 7 gives an overview about the kind of disorder classified to the DSM. Moreover, six scales were based on Young's Diagnostic Questionnaire (1998b) and five were based on Young's Internet Addiction Test (1998a).

DSM-Edition	Type of Disorder	Count (n)
DSM-IV (APA, 1994)	Pathological gambling	4
	Substance use disorder	3
	Personality disorder	1
DSM-IV-TR (APA,	Pathological gambling	5
2000)	Substance use disorder	1
DSM-V (APA, 2013)	Pathological gambling	4
	Internet gaming disorder (IGD)	3
	Substance use disorder	3
	Criteria for behavioural addiction	1

Table 7. DSM Distribution across extracted Scales

5. DISCUSSION

In the section which follows, the findings of the three research objectives are discussed. with emphasis falling on the overarching objective of the study - the determination of the dimensional distribution of behavioural addiction scales measuring ICT use addiction. The first section focuses on the identification and categorisation of the dimensions relevant to the measurement ICT use as a form of behavioural addiction. The second section deals with findings relating to the technology scales that were identified and analysed in the study. The third section deals with the results of the application of dimension categorization in each of the identified scales. In addition, the fourth section deals with the main findings, which arose from the results of the three sub-objectives. Finally, a conclusion summarizing the core insights is provided, limitations of the study are stated and the implications of the findings for future research are considered.

The *first sub-objective* deals with the determination of technology addiction dimensions as they relate to ICT use behaviour. Currently, there does not exists an agreed upon set of dimensions for the measurement technology addiction through self-report. Lortie and Guittons (2013) model was compared and matched to Griffiths "Component" model (2005) and the DSM-V criteria for substance use disorder as these are the prominent models in the literature (see Section 2.1.-2.2.). An interesting finding made in this regard is that the dimension "social comfort" identified by Lortie and Guitton (2013) does not align with the DSM-V criteria for substance use disorder or the "Component" model (see Figure 1). All other dimensions of Lortie and Guitton (2013) could be matched. This suggests that "social comfort", as a dimension of ICT use addiction, has not yet received much consideration. Moreover, the present study proposed 13 dimensions whereas the model of Lortie and Guitton (2013) contains only seven. New dimensions such as "cognitive absorption", "descriptive of use behaviour" and "utility and function loss" were introduced. A possible explanation might be that Lortie and Guitton (2013) only dealt with Internet addiction scales, whereas this study also considered smartphone-, video game- and SNS scales. However, while these dimensions capture an element of the items, they were used much less frequently than the other prominent dimensions (e.g., "compulsive use", "negative outcomes").

The *second sub-objective* concerned the identification of ICT use addiction scales for the purpose of dimensional analysis. Prior studies have extracted technology scales that relate to particular technologies or technology types with the aim of understanding concepts, prevalence and criteria relating to that particular sub-category. The main finding of these studies was that there seems to be a consensus about the existence of different forms of technology addiction, but that the criteria used to measure addiction across the technology areas are multifarious and inconsistently applied (Andreassen, 2015; De-Sola et al., 2016; Kuss et al., 2014; King et al., 2013; Lortie and Guitton, 2013). On the question of which kind of criteria the scales were based on, this study found that a large proportion is based on DSM criteria, especially those relating to the behavioural addiction of pathological gambling. Six scales were based on Young's Diagnostic Questionnaire (1998b) and five were based on Young's Internet Addiction Test (1998a). One potential reason could be that pathological gambling criteria were a first starting point to build technology scales as it is seen as a behavioural addiction with similar properties. In addition, Young's Internet addiction scales were the first to measure Internet addiction. As Internet addiction is one of the first scales to deal with

behaviour in a broader spectrum, it is not surprising that later scales adopted it as a reference point. Another promising finding was that the number of scales used in research has risen steadily since 2012. There are several possible explanations for this trend. The DSM-V, which was published in 2010, contains updates for disorders and IGD was introduced as a disorder for further study. Therefore, new cales developed contained the updated criteria of the DSM-V. When looking at the distribution scale adoption across continents it is evident that most scales were developed in Europe or Asia and fewer scales were developed in Africa and South America as opposed to. A plausible explanation for this pattern is that African and South American countries are facing a range of more immediate and urgent challenges which are more likely to receive attention from researchers. Another reason might be, that developing countries may have lower research productivity when compared to more developed countries.

The *third sub-objective* concerned the application of the theoretical model of addiction dimensions to the sample of scales identified. The analysis revealed that three dimensions ("compulsive use", "negative outcomes" and "withdrawal symptoms") are the most used dimensions (71.27 %). This pattern is consistent across the four technology areas and aligns with the findings of Lortie and Guitton (2013). However, in this study items categorised as referring to "withdrawal symptoms" occurred less frequently than in the findings of Lortie and Guitton (2013). A possible explanation for this might be that out of the 50 scales, 20 were based on DSM disorders, such as pathological gambling, substance use disorder or IGD (see Section 4.3). These types of disorders consist mostly of these three dimensions, which Figure 1 illustrates for substance use disorder criteria of the mapping. Four criteria (IC4, SI5, SI6, RUS8) are mapped to "compulsive use", three criteria (PC10, IC1, IC2) are mapped to "compulsive use" and only one criteria (PC11) is mapped to "withdrawal symptoms". Another possible explanation for this is that, when looking at the dimension of "compulsive use" of Lortie and Guitton's (2013) model, this dimension is used as a synonym for tolerance. Therefore, when a scale is measuring tolerance, it will be mapped to "compulsive use". That may be another reason, why "compulsive use" as a dimension was used more often than other dimensions. Another possible reason might be, that the dimension "negative outcomes" contains categories of different areas such as working and study life, social and psychological well-being. Therefore, this dimension could be too broad and should be subdivided.

One unanticipated finding was that the dimension "utility and function loss" is only used in the area of smartphones. This result may be explained by the fact that the smartphone includes features to support daily activities such as calendar, camera and applications. Without these functionalities people may experience a degree of frustration. This seems not to be the case for videogaming, SNS and Internet. Moreover, the dimensions "social comfort" and "mood regulation" are used more in the area of SNS, when compared to the overall sample. A reason for this might be that some people prefer online social interaction over face-to-face interaction. Another reason might be that SNS are used to counter or cope with experiences of stress.

Another important finding was the identification of the dimension "cognitive absorption" which is not present in the models of Lortie and Guitton (2013) and Griffiths (2005). As a dimension of ICT use addition, "cognitive absorption" serves to differentiate behavioural addictions which involve ICT use from behavioral addictions. The absence of "cognitive absorption" from the model of Lortie and Guitton (2013) can be explained by the fact that they only dealt with Internet addiction scales.

Moreover, only two extracted scales in this study contained dimensions dealing with "absorption" or "immersion" (Demetrovics et al., 2012; Lopez-Fernandez et al., 2013). This might be another reason, why "cognitive absorption" has largely been ignored as a dimension.

A potential question arises between the difference of pathological gambling when doing online and offline. Pathological gambling does not fall into the category of "Internet Gaming Disorder" when playing on the Internet. With the definition of technology addiction in this study (see Section 2.3.), it would fall into the category of technology addiction. The question arises how these forms should be handled. When comparing gambling to offline and online use, online gambling seems to be more dangerous and addictive (Hubert and Griffiths, 2018). This could be explained by the increased levels of cognitive absorption associated with online gambling.

5.1. Limitations

This study should be considered only as a first point of reference for further work dealing with conceptual development of technology addiction dimensions. It is characterised by several limitations which should be considered when researching technology addiction and their dimensions.

First of all, limitations for the constructed theoretical model are acknowledged. The model's foundation was the model of Lortie and Guitton (2013) which compared Internet addiction dimensions which they grouped in seven dimensions. The authors did not compare other technology addiction scales for their proposed dimensional model. In addition, this theoretical model compared and mapped Lortie and Guitton's (2013) model to the component model of Griffiths (2005) and to the dimensions of the DSM-V criteria of substance use disorder. This relates more to substance abuse than to behavioural addictions. The new proposed behavioural addiction IGD in the DSM-V would be a better fit.

Moreover, limitations in the data collection should be acknowledged. The keyword combination as described in Figure 2 was too long for most databases. The keyword search contained 213 words, of which 106 were connectors. The majority of the databases have limitations on the length of keyword strings and connectors. For this reason, the search string was divided into four separate parts as explained in 3.2 and entered separately into the database. The results of each database were merged. Moreover, the wildcard operator was not accepted in all databases. That is the reason why the search string had to be entered with different possible keyword combinations. As a result of limitations, 1676 duplicates were produced by the different searches. Therefore, scales fitting the inclusion criteria could have been missed. One concern involves the inclusion criteria of the selected year range. Internet addiction scales start in 1996 whereas the other three areas start in 2008. This may have resulted in uneven distribution across the different technology areas.

Another limitation involves the new dimensions identified. It could be argued that the items associated with the six new dimensions could have been coded differently. The dimension "compulsive use" also includes tolerance items due to Lortie and Guitton's model (2013) treating these dimensions as synonymous. Therefore, tolerance is not treated as a separate dimension in this study. Additionally, the dimension "negative outcomes" contains negative aspects from various areas in life such as work, social and psychological well-being. Therefore, it is not possible to distinguish between these different aspects in order to group them. Moreover, the proposed dimensions

"intention to use in the future", "personality" and "irrelevant" were only mapped to one item. Therefore, these dimensions require further investigation.

For the proposed areas in this study, SNS only represents five extracted scales and 50 items which is a low number compared to the other three areas. Additionally, the four proposed areas overlap in certain items and sometimes it is hard to distinguish between certain areas of technology, especially when dealing with Internet- and SNS addiction scales.

5.2. Prospects for Future Research

There is currently no gold standard for measuring technological addiction, as there are no suitable scales for this purpose. Therefore, further research should be undertaken to investigate potentially uniform scales for technology addiction. Moreover, the criteria, which the technology scales are based on lack uniformity. The research on IGD of the DSM-V seems to be prominent as criteria upon which to develop a uniform foundation. The ICD-11 will take effect in January 2022 and gaming disorder will be officially included as a behavioral addiction with that release (Kamenetz, 2019; WHO, 2019). To develop a full picture of all potential dimensions of technology addiction, additional studies will be needed. The dimension "cognitive absorption", which was extracted as a new dimension, seems to be auspicious, as it describes a specific mental state. When looking at the demographic data, studies focus on students and adults. Further studies need to be conducted in order to find generational differences in relation to technology addiction. Moreover, studies should also be conducted in continents such as Africa and South America to identify potential cultural differences.

6. CONCLUSION

The purpose of this study was to explore and understand the dimensional distribution of technology addiction scales by systematically selecting and analysing 50 technology addiction scales in the areas of Internet, smartphone, video games and SNS.

The most substantial finding to emerge from this study is that there seems to be common dimensions used across different areas of technology. This includes dimensions like "compulsive use", "negative outcomes" and "withdrawal symptoms". There are also clear differences across dimensions. For instance, the dimensions "social comfort" and "mood regulation" are more used in the areas of SNS and the dimension "utility and function loss" is only used for smartphones. The second major finding was that new dimensions should be considered when dealing with technology addiction, which were not yet studied in a broader way. This includes dimensions like "cognitive absorption", "descriptive of use behaviour" and "utility and function loss". Especially "cognitive absorption" seem to be a promising dimension as it considers the mental state of a person when using an ICT. This seems to be different when comparing to behavioural addictions such as pathological gambling. The third major finding was that there is no gold standard for the conceptual criteria or definition for technology addiction. A large part of the 50 extracted scales were based on a combination of DSM criteria and Young's Questionnaire (1998b) and Internet Addiction Test (1998a).

These findings are important, as this study lays the groundwork for future research into technology addiction scale development to design better instruments. Unanswered questions are, how scales should be handled, which only focus on one dimension and disregard other dimensions. Moreover, it is unclear, whether there is an overarching dimension for technology addiction.

In light of this, it is recommended that (i) dimension distribution across different areas is further investigated; (ii) more research concerning potentially new dimensions like "cognitive absorption", "descriptive of use behaviour" and "utility and function loss" should be undertaken; (iii) an overarching definition of technology addiction should be constructed, which could be based on common criteria such as the proposed DSM-V criteria for IGD, in order to standardize assessment tools.

In summary, the field of technology addiction scale dimensions is well researched in the specific areas, however there is a need for a homogeneous approach to measurement in order to more accurately assess the constructs under investigation.

7. REFERENCES

Agarwal, R., and Karahanna, E. 2000. "Time Flies When You're Having Fun: Cognitive Absorption and Beliefs about Information Technology Usage," *MIS Quarterly* (24:4), p. 665–694.

Alabi, O. F. 2013. "A Survey of Facebook Addiction Level among Selected Nigerian University Undergraduates," *New Media and Mass Communication* (10:2012), pp. 70–80.

Andreassen, C. S., and Pallesen, S. 2014. "Social Network Site Addiction-an Overview," *Current Pharmaceutical Design* (20:25), pp. 4053–4061.

Andreassen, C. S. 2015. "Online Social Network Site Addiction: A Comprehensive Review," *Current Addiction Reports* (2:2), pp. 175–184.

Andreassen, C. S., Torsheim, T., Brunborg, G. S., and Pallesen, S. 2012. "Development of a Facebook Addiction Scale," *Psychological Reports* (110:2), pp. 501–517.

APA. 1994. *Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders: DSM-IV*, (4th ed.), Washington, DC: American Psychiatric Association.

APA. 2000. *Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders: DSM-IV-TR*, (4th ed., revised.), Washington, D.C: American Psychiatric Association.

APA. 2013. *Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders: DSM-V*, (5th ed.), Washington, D.C: American Psychiatric Association.

APA. 2018. "DSM-5 FAQ," (https://www.psychiatry.org/psychiatrists/practice/dsm/feedback-and-questions/frequently-asked-q uestions, accessed April 24, 2019).

Apple Inc. 2018. "IOS 12 Introduces New Features to Reduce Interruptions and Manage Screen Time," *Apple Newsroom*, June 4. (https://www.apple.com/newsroom/2018/06/ios-12-introduces-new-features-to-reduce-interruptions -and-manage-screen-time/, accessed May 20, 2019).

Armstrong, L., Phillips, J. G., and Saling, L. L. 2000. "Potential Determinants of Heavier Internet Usage," *International Journal of Human-Computer Studies* (53:4), pp. 537–550.

Bian, M., and Leung, L. 2015. "Linking Loneliness, Shyness, Smartphone Addiction Symptoms, and Patterns of Smartphone Use to Social Capital," *Social Science Computer Review* (33:1), pp. 61–79.

Bianchi, A., and Phillips, J. G. 2005. "Psychological Predictors of Problem Mobile Phone Use," *CyberPsychology & Behavior* (8:1), pp. 39–51.

Billieux, J., van der Linden, M., and Rochat, L. 2008. "The Role of Impulsivity in Actual and Problematic Use of the Mobile Phone," *Applied Cognitive Psychology* (22:9), pp. 1195–1210.

Bock, B. C., Lantini, R., Thind, H., Walaska, K., Rosen, R. K., Fava, J. L., Barnett, N. P., and Scott-Sheldon, L. A. 2016a. "The Mobile Phone Affinity Scale: Enhancement and Refinement," *JMIR MHealth and UHealth* (4:4), p. e134.

Bock, B. C., Thind, H., Fava, J. L., Walaska, K., Barnett, N., Rosen, R., Traficante, R., and Lantini, R. 2016b. "Development of the Mobile Phone Attachment Scale," in *System Sciences (HICSS)*, 2016 49th Hawaii International Conference On, IEEE, pp. 3401–3407.

Buono, F. D., Upton, T. D., Griffiths, M. D., Sprong, M. E., and Bordieri, J. 2016. "Demonstrating the Validity of the Video Game Functional Assessment-Revised (VGFA-R)," *Computers in Human Behavior* (54), pp. 501–510.

Brenner, V. 1997. "Psychology of Computer Use: XLVII. Parameters of Internet Use, Abuse and Addiction: The First 90 Days of the Internet Usage Survey," *Psychological Reports* (80:3), pp. 879–882.

von Brocke, J., Simons, A., Niehaves, B., Riemer, K., Plattfaut, R., and Cleven, A. 2009. "Reconstructing the Giant: On the Importance of Rigour in Documenting the Literature Search Process.," in *Ecis* (9), pp. 2206–2217.

Brown, R. I. F. 1993. "Some Contributions of the Study of Gambling to the Study of Other Addictions," in *Gambling Behavior and Problem Gambling*, Eadington W. R., and Cornelius J. (eds.), Reno, NV: Institute for the Study of Gambling and Commercial Gaming, University of Nevada Press, pp. 241–272.

Brown, R. I. F. 1997. "A Theoretical Model of the Behavioural Addictions–Applied to Offending," in *Addicted to Crime*, Hodge, J. E., McMurran, M., and Hollins, C. R. (eds.), Chichester, UK: John Wiley, pp. 13–65.

Buchanan, T. 2001. "Online personality assessment," in *Dimensions of Internet science*, Reips, U.D., and Bosnjak, M. (eds.), Lengerich, DE: Pabst Science Publishers, pp. 57-74.

Buchanan, T., and Smith, J. L. 1999. "Using the Internet for Psychological Research: Personality Testing on the World Wide Web," *British Journal of Psychology* (90:1), pp. 125–144.

Bush, K., Kivlahan, D. R., McDonell, M. B., Fihn, S. D., and Bradley, K. A. 1998. "The AUDIT Alcohol Consumption Questions (AUDIT-C): An Effective Brief Screening Test for Problem Drinking," *Archives of Internal Medicine* (158:16), pp. 1789–1795.

Çam, E., and Isbulan, O. 2012. "A New Addiction for Teacher Candidates: Social Networks.," *Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology-TOJET* (11:3), pp. 14–19.

Caplan, S. E. 2002. "Problematic Internet Use and Psychosocial Well-Being: Development of a Theory-Based Cognitive–Behavioral Measurement Instrument," *Computers in Human Behavior* (18:5), pp. 553–575.

Caplan, S. E. 2003. "Preference for Online Social Interaction: A Theory of Problematic Internet Use and Psychosocial Well-Being," *Communication Research* (30:6), pp. 625–648.

Caplan, S. E. 2010. "Theory and Measurement of Generalized Problematic Internet Use: A Two-Step Approach," *Computers in Human Behavior* (26:5), pp. 1089–1097.

Casale, S., Tella, L., and Fioravanti, G. 2013. "Preference for Online Social Interactions among Young People: Direct and Indirect Effects of Emotional Intelligence," *Personality and Individual Differences* (54:4), pp. 524–529.

Charlton, J. P. 2002. "A Factor-Analytic Investigation of Computer 'Addiction' and Engagement," *British Journal of Psychology* (93:3), pp. 329–344.

Charlton, J. P., and Danforth, I. D. 2007. "Distinguishing Addiction and High Engagement in the Context of Online Game Playing," *Computers in Human Behavior* (23:3), pp. 1531–1548.

Chen, S. H., Weng, L. J., Su, Y. J., Wu, H. M., and Yang, P. F. 2003. "Development of a Chinese Internet Addiction Scale and Its Psychometric Study," *Chinese Journal of Psychology* (45:3), pp. 279–294.

Ching, S. M., Yee, A., Ramachandran, V., Lim, S. M. S., Sulaiman, W. A. W., Foo, Y. L., and Hoo, F. K. 2015. "Validation of a Malay Version of the Smartphone Addiction Scale among Medical Students in Malaysia," *PloS One* (10:10), p. e0139337.

Cho, S., and Lee, E. 2015. "Development of a Brief Instrument to Measure Smartphone Addiction Among Nursing Students," *CIN: Computers, Informatics, Nursing* (33:5), p. 216–224.

Chóliz, M. 2012. "Mobile-Phone Addiction in Adolescence: The Test of Mobile Phone Dependence (TMD)," *Prog Health Sci* (2:1), pp. 33–44.

Chóliz, M., Pinto, L., Phansalkar, S. S., Corr, E., Mujjahid, A., Flores, C., and Barrientos, P. E. 2016. "Development of a Brief Multicultural Version of the Test of Mobile Phone Dependence (TMDbrief) Questionnaire," *Frontiers in Psychology* (7), p. 650.

Chow, S. L., Leung, G. M., Ng, C., and Yu, E. 2009. "A Screen for Identifying Maladaptive Internet Use," *International Journal of Mental Health and Addiction* (7:2), pp. 324–332.

Chung, J. E. 2013. "Social Interaction in Online Support Groups: Preference for Online Social Interaction over Offline Social Interaction," *Computers in Human Behavior* (29:4), pp. 1408–1414.

Cloninger, C. R., Przybeck, T. R., Svrakic, D. M., and Wetzel, R. D. (ed.). 1994. *The Temperament and Character Inventory (TCI): A Guide to Its Development and Use*, (1st ed.), St. Louis, MO: Center for Psychobiology of Personality, Washington University.

Davis, R. A. 2001. "A Cognitive-Behavioral Model of Pathological Internet Use," *Computers in Human Behavior* (17:2), pp. 187–195.

Delfabbro, P., and King, D. 2015. "On Finding the C in CBT: The Challenges of Applying Gambling-Related Cognitive Approaches to Video-Gaming," *Journal of Gambling Studies* (31:1), pp. 315–329.

Demetrovics, Z., Szeredi, B., and Rózsa, S. 2008. "The Three-Factor Model of Internet Addiction: The Development of the Problematic Internet Use Questionnaire," *Behavior Research Methods* (40:2), pp. 563–574.

Demetrovics, Z., Urbán, R., Nagygyörgy, K., Farkas, J., Griffiths, M. D., Pápay, O., Kökönyei, G., Felvinczi, K., and Oláh, A. 2012. "The Development of the Problematic Online Gaming Questionnaire (POGQ)," *PloS One* (7:5), p. e36417.

De-Sola, J., de Fonseca, F. R., and Rubio, G. 2016. "Cell-Phone Addiction: A Review," *Frontiers in Psychiatry* (7), p. 175.

De-Sola, J., Talledo, H., Rubio, G., and de Fonseca, F. R. 2017a. "Development of a Mobile Phone Addiction Craving Scale and Its Validation in a Spanish Adult Population," *Frontiers in Psychiatry* (8), p. 90.

De-Sola, J., Talledo, H., Rubio, G., and de Fonseca, F. R. 2017b. "Psychological Factors and Alcohol Use in Problematic Mobile Phone Use in the Spanish Population," *Frontiers in Psychiatry* (8), p.11.

DeVellis, R. F. 2016. *Scale Development: Theory and Applications*, (4th ed., Vol. 26), Chapel Hill, NC: Sage publications.

DRM Study Group. 2016. "DRM 52 Scale of Internet Use in Adolescents," in *Adolescent Internet Addiction: Recognition and Intervention*, Shanghai Youth Federation, Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, and Singapore People's Association Youth Movement (eds.), Shanghai: East China University of Science and Technology Press, 2006 pp. 34–40.

Elhai, J. D., Tiamiyu, M., and Weeks, J. 2018. "Depression and Social Anxiety in Relation to Problematic Smartphone Use: The Prominent Role of Rumination," *Internet Research* (28:2), pp. 315–332.

Elphinston, R. A., and Noller, P. 2011. "Time to Face It! Facebook Intrusion and the Implications for Romantic Jealousy and Relationship Satisfaction," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (14:11), pp. 631–635.

Ezoe, S., Iida, T., Inoue, K., and Toda, M. 2016. "Development of Japanese Version of Smartphone Dependence Scale," *Open Journal of Preventive Medicine* (6:7), pp. 179–185.

Fargues, M. B., Lusar, A. C., Jordania, C. G., and Sánchez, X. C. 2009. "Metodología: Validación de Dos Escalas Breves Para Evaluar La Adicción a Internet y El Abuso de Móvil [Methodology: Validation of Two Brief Scales to Evaluate Internet Addiction and Mobile Abuse]," *Psicothema* (21:3), pp. 480–485.

Farmer, R., and Sundberg, N. D. 1986. "Boredom Proneness-the Development and Correlates of a New Scale," *Journal of Personality Assessment* (50:1), pp. 4–17.

Fioravanti, G., Dèttore, D., and Casale, S. 2012. "Adolescent Internet Addiction: Testing the Association Between Self-Esteem, the Perception of Internet Attributes, and Preference for Online Social Interactions," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (15:6), pp. 318–323.

Forrest, C. J., King, D. L., and Delfabbro, P. H. 2016. "The Measurement of Maladaptive Cognitions Underlying Problematic Video-Game Playing among Adults," *Computers in Human Behavior* (55), pp. 399–405.

Gaetan, S., Bonnet, A., Brejard, V., and Cury, F. 2014. "French Validation of the 7-Item Game Addiction Scale for Adolescents," *Revue Européenne de Psychologie Appliquée/European Review of Applied Psychology* (64:4), pp. 161–168.

Gentile, D. 2009. "Pathological Video-Game Use among Youth Ages 8 to 18: A National Study," *Psychological Science* (20:5), pp. 594–602.

Griffiths, M. D. 1995. "Technological Addictions," Clinical Psychology Forum (76), pp. 14–19.

Griffiths, M. D. 1996. "Behavioural Addiction: An Issue for Everybody?," *Employee Counselling Today* (8:3), pp. 19–25.

Griffiths, M. D. 1999. "Internet Addiction: Fact or Fiction?," The Psychologist (12), pp. 246-250.

Griffiths, M. D. 2000. "Does Internet and Computer" Addiction" Exist? Some Case Study Evidence," *CyberPsychology and Behavior* (3:2), pp. 211–218.

Griffiths, M. D. 2005. "A 'Components' Model of Addiction within a Biopsychosocial Framework," Journal of Substance Use (10:4), pp. 191–197.

Griffiths, M. D., King, D. L., and Demetrovics, Z. 2014. "DSM-5 Internet Gaming Disorder Needs a Unified Approach to Assessment," Neuropsychiatry (4:1), pp. 1–4.

Güzeller, C. O., and Coşguner, T. 2012. "Development of a Problematic Mobile Phone Use Scale for Turkish Adolescents," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (15:4), pp. 205–211.

Haagsma, M. C., Caplan, S. E., Peters, O., and Pieterse, M. E. 2013. "A Cognitive-Behavioral Model of Problematic Online Gaming in Adolescents Aged 12–22 years," *Computers in Human Behavior* (29:1), Including Special Section Youth, Internet, and Wellbeing, pp. 202–209.

Hahn, A., and Jerusalem, M. 2001. "Internetsucht: Validierung Eines Instruments Und Explorative Hinweise Auf Personale Bedingungen [Internet addiction: Validation of an Instrument And Explorative Notes On Personnel Conditions]," *Handbuch Zur Online-Marktforschung. Beiträge Aus Wissenschaft Und Praxis. Gabler, Wiesbaden*, pp. 213–233.

Hormes, J. M., Kearns, B., and Timko, C. A. 2014. "Craving Facebook? Behavioral Addiction to Online Social Networking and Its Association with Emotion Regulation Deficits," *Addiction* (109:12), pp. 2079–2088.

Horvath, C. W. 2004. "Measuring Television Addiction," *Journal of Broadcasting & Electronic Media* (48:3), pp. 378–398.

Huang, Z., Wang, M., Qian, M., Zhong, J., and Tao, R. 2007. "Chinese Internet Addiction Inventory: Developing a Measure of Problematic Internet Use for Chinese College Students," *CyberPsychology* & *Behavior* (10:6), pp. 805–812.

Hubert, P., and Griffiths, M. D. 2018. "A Comparison of Online Versus Offline Gambling Harm in Portuguese Pathological Gamblers: An Empirical Study," *International Journal of Mental Health and Addiction* (16:5), pp. 1219–1237.

Jap, T., Tiatri, S., Jaya, E. S., and Suteja, M. S. 2013. "The Development of Indonesian Online Game Addiction Questionnaire," *PloS One* (8:4), p. e61098.

Jenaro, C., Flores, N., Gómez-Vela, M., González-Gil, F., and Caballo, C. 2007. "Problematic Internet and Cell-Phone Use: Psychological, Behavioral, and Health Correlates," *Addiction Research & Theory* (15:3), pp. 309–320.

Kamenetz, A. 2019. "Is 'Gaming Disorder' An Illness? WHO Says Yes, Adding It To Its List Of Diseases," *NPR.Org*, May 28. (https://www.npr.org/2019/05/28/727585904/is-gaming-disorder-an-illness-the-who-says-yes-addin g-it-to-its-list-of-diseases, accessed May 31, 2019).

Khazaal, Y., Chatton, A., Rothen, S., Achab, S., Thorens, G., Zullino, D., and Gmel, G. 2016. "Psychometric Properties of the 7-Item Game Addiction Scale among French and German Speaking Adults," *BMC Psychiatry* (16:1), p. 132.

Kim, D. I., Chung, Y. J., Lee, E. A., Kim, D. M., and Cho, Y. M. 2008a. "Development of Internet Addiction Proneness Scale-Short Form (KS Scale)," *Korean J Couns* (9:4), pp. 1703–1722.

Kim, E. J., Namkoong, K., Ku, T., and Kim, S. J. 2008b. "The Relationship between Online Game Addiction and Aggression, Self-Control and Narcissistic Personality Traits," *European Psychiatry* (23:3), pp. 212–218.

Kim, D., Lee, Y., Lee, J., Nam, J. K., and Chung, Y. 2014. "Development of Korean Smartphone Addiction Proneness Scale for Youth," *PloS One* (9:5), p. e97920.

King, D. L., and Delfabbro, P. H. 2014. "The Cognitive Psychology of Internet Gaming Disorder," *Clinical Psychology Review* (34:4), pp. 298–308.

King, D. L., Haagsma, M. C., Delfabbro, P. H., Gradisar, M., and Griffiths, M. D. 2013. "Toward a Consensus Definition of Pathological Video-Gaming: A Systematic Review of Psychometric Assessment Tools," *Clinical Psychology Review* (33:3), pp. 331–342.

Ko, C. H., Yen, C. F., Yen, C. N., Yen, J. Y., Chen, C. C., and Chen, S. H. 2005a. "Screening for Internet Addiction: An Empirical Study on Cut-off Points for the Chen Internet Addiction Scale," *The Kaohsiung Journal of Medical Sciences* (21:12), pp. 545–551.

Ko, C. H., Yen, J. Y., Chen, C. C., Chen, S. H., and Yen, C. F. 2005b. "Proposed Diagnostic Criteria of Internet Addiction for Adolescents:," *The Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease* (193:11), pp. 728–733.

Ko, C. H., Yen, J. Y., Chen, C. S., Yeh, Y. C., and Yen, C. F. 2009. "Predictive Values of Psychiatric Symptoms for Internet Addiction in Adolescents: A 2-Year Prospective Study," *Archives of Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine* (163:10), pp. 937–943.

Koc, M., and Gulyagci, S. 2013. "Facebook Addiction Among Turkish College Students: The Role of Psychological Health, Demographic, and Usage Characteristics," *CyberPsychology, Behavior & Social Networking* (16:4), pp. 279–284.

Koo, H. Y. 2009. "Development of a Cell Phone Addiction Scale for Korean Adolescents," *Journal of Korean Academy of Nursing* (39:6), p. 818–828.

Kuss, D. J., Griffiths, M. D., Karila, L., and Billieux, J. 2014. "Internet Addiction: A Systematic Review of Epidemiological Research for the Last Decade," *Current Pharmaceutical Design* (20:25), pp. 4026–4052.

Kuss, D. J., Harkin, L., Kanjo, E., and Billieux, J. 2018. "Problematic Smartphone Use: Investigating Contemporary Experiences Using a Convergent Design," *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health* (15:1), p.142.

Kwon, M., Lee, J. Y., Won, W. Y., Park, J. W., Min, J. A., Hahn, C., Gu, X., Choi, J. H., and Kim, D. J. 2013a. "Development and Validation of a Smartphone Addiction Scale (SAS)," *PloS One* (8:2), p. e56936.

Kwon, M., Kim, D. J., Cho, H., and Yang, S. 2013b. "The Smartphone Addiction Scale: Development and Validation of a Short Version for Adolescents," *PloS One* (8:12), p. e83558.

Lee, H. K., Kim, J. H., Fava, M., Mischoulon, D., Park, J. H., Shim, E. J., Lee, E. H., Lee, J. H., and Jeon, H. J. 2017. "Development and Validation Study of the Smartphone Overuse Screening Questionnaire," *Psychiatry Research* (257), pp. 352–357.

Lee, H. K., Lee, H. W., Han, J. H., Park, S., Ju, S. J., Choi, K., Lee, J. H., and Jeon, H. J. 2018. "Development and Validation Study of the Internet Overuse Screening Questionnaire," *Psychiatry Investigation* (15:4), pp. 361–369.

Lemmens, J. S., Valkenburg, P. M., and Peter, J. 2009. "Development and Validation of a Game Addiction Scale for Adolescents," *Media Psychology* (12:1), pp. 77–95.

Lemos, I. L., Cardoso, A., and Sougey, E. B. 2016. "Validity and Reliability Assessment of the Brazilian Version of the Game Addiction Scale (GAS)," *Comprehensive Psychiatry* (67), pp. 19–25.

Lesieur, H. R., and Blume, S. B. 1987. "The South Oaks Gambling Screen (SOGS): A New Instrument for the Identification of Pathological Gamblers," *American Journal of Psychiatry* (144:9), pp. 1184–1188.

Leung, L. 2008. "Linking Psychological Attributes to Addiction and Improper Use of the Mobile Phone among Adolescents in Hong Kong," *Journal of Children and Media* (2:2), pp. 93–113.

Lin, Y. H., Chang, L. R., Lee, Y. H., Tseng, H. W., Kuo, T. B., and Chen, S. H. 2014. "Development and Validation of the Smartphone Addiction Inventory (SPAI)," *PloS One* (9:6), p. e98312.

Lin, Y. H., Pan, Y. C., Lin, S. H., and Chen, S. H. 2017. "Development of Short-Form and Screening Cutoff Point of the Smartphone Addiction Inventory (SPAI-SF)," *International Journal of Methods in Psychiatric Research* (26:2), p. e1525.

Liu, C., and Ma, J. 2018. "Development and Validation of the Chinese Social Media Addiction Scale," *Personality and Individual Differences* (134), pp. 55–59.

Lopez-Fernandez, O., Freixa-Blanxart, M., and Honrubia-Serrano, M. L. 2013. "The Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents: Prevalence of Problem Internet Use in Spanish High School Students," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (16:2), pp. 108–118.

Lopez-Fernandez, O., Honrubia-Serrano, L., Freixa-Blanxart, M., and Gibson, W. 2014. "Prevalence of Problematic Mobile Phone Use in British Adolescents," *CyberPsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (17:2), pp. 91–98.

Lortie, C. L., and Guitton, M. J. 2013. "Internet Addiction Assessment Tools: Dimensional Structure and Methodological Status: Internet Addiction Assessment Tools," *Addiction* (108:7), pp. 1207–1216.

Mak, K. K., Lai, C. M., Ko, C. H., Chou, C., Kim, D. I., Watanabe, H., and Ho, R. C. M. 2014. "Psychometric Properties of the Revised Chen Internet Addiction Scale (CIAS-R) in Chinese Adolescents," *Journal of Abnormal Child Psychology* (42:7), pp. 1237–1245.

McDonald, E. 2017. "Newzoo's 2017 Report: Insights into the \$108.9Bn Global Games Market," June 20. (https://newzoo.com/insights/articles/newzoo-2017-report-insights-into-the-108-9-billion-global-games-market/, accessed May 29, 2019).

McHugh, M. L. 2012. "Interrater Reliability: The Kappa Statistic," *Biochemia Medica* (22:3), pp. 276–282.

Meerkerk, G. J., Laluan, A. M. E., and van den Eijnden, R. 2003. *Internetverslaving: Hoax of Serieuze Bedreiging Voorde Geestelijke Volksgezondheid? [Internet Addiction: Hoax or a Serious Threat to Mental Health]*, Rotterdam, NL: Instituut Voor Onderzoek Naar Leefwijzen &Verslaving (IVO).

Meerkerk, G. J., van Den Eijnden, R. J. J. M., Vermulst, A. A., and Garretsen, H. F. L. 2009. "The Compulsive Internet Use Scale (CIUS): Some Psychometric Properties," *CyberPsychology & Behavior* (12:1), pp. 1–6.

Merlo, L. J., Stone, A. M., and Bibbey, A. 2013. "Measuring Problematic Mobile Phone Use: Development and Preliminary Psychometric Properties of the PUMP Scale," *Journal of Addiction* (2013), pp. 1–7.

Miniwatts Marketing Group. 2019. "World Internet Users Statistics and 2019 World Population Stats," March 31. (https://www.internetworldstats.com/stats.htm, accessed May 29, 2019).

Mok, J. Y., Choi, S. W., Kim, D. J., Choi, J. S., Lee, J., Ahn, H., Choi, E. J., and Song, W. Y. 2014. "Latent Class Analysis on Internet and Smartphone Addiction in College Students," *Neuropsychiatric Disease and Treatment* (10), pp. 817–828.

Morahan-Martin, J., and Schumacher, P. 2000. "Incidence and Correlates of Pathological Internet Use among College Students," *Computers in Human Behavior* (16:1), pp. 13–29.

National Information Society Agency. (2011). "Development of Korean Smartphone Addiction Proneness Scale for Youth and Adults," Seoul, South Korea: NIA IV-RER-11051.

Nichols, L. A., and Nicki, R. 2004. "Development of a Psychometrically Sound Internet Addiction Scale: A Preliminary Step.," *Psychology of Addictive Behaviors* (18:4), p. 381–384.

Olivencia-Carrión, M. A., Ramírez-Uclés, I., Holgado-Tello, P., and López-Torrecillas, F. 2018. "Validation of a Spanish Questionnaire on Mobile Phone Abuse," *Frontiers in Psychology* (9), p. 621.

Parry, D.A. 2019. "Media Multitasking and Cognitive Control: Assessing the Feasibility of an Intervention Requiring the Self-regulation of Smartphone Use", PhD Thesis, Stellenbosch University.

Pearcy, B. T. D., Roberts, L. D., and McEvoy, P. M. 2016. "Psychometric Testing of the Personal Internet Gaming Disorder Evaluation-9: A New Measure Designed to Assess Internet Gaming Disorder," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior and Social Networking* (19:5), pp. 335–341.

Pontes, H. M., and Griffiths, M. D. 2015. "Measuring DSM-5 Internet Gaming Disorder: Development and Validation of a Short Psychometric Scale," Computers in Human Behavior (45), pp. 137–143.

Pontes, H. M., and Griffiths, M. D. 2017. "The Development and Psychometric Evaluation of the Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15)," *Addictive Behaviors* (64), pp. 261–268.

Pontes, H. M., Király, O., Demetrovics, Z., and Griffiths, M. D. 2014. "The Conceptualisation and Measurement of DSM-5 Internet Gaming Disorder: The Development of the IGD-20 Test," *PloS One* (9:10), p. e110137.

Pratarelli, M. E., Browne, B. L., and Johnson, K. 1999. "The Bits and Bytes of Computer/Internet Addiction: A Factor Analytic Approach," *Behavior Research Methods, Instruments, & Computers* (31:2), pp. 305–314.

Rehbein, F., Psych, G., Kleimann, M., Mediasci, G., and Mössle, T. 2010. "Prevalence and Risk Factors of Video Game Dependency in Adolescence: Results of a German Nationwide Survey," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (13:3), pp. 269–277.

van Rooij, A. J., Schoenmakers, T. M., van den Eijnden, R. J., Vermulst, A. A., and van de Mheen, D. 2012. "Video Game Addiction Test: Validity and Psychometric Characteristics," *Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking* (15:9), pp. 507–511.

Rotunda, R. J., Kass, S. J., Sutton, M. A., and Leon, D. T. 2003. "Internet Use and Misuse: Preliminary Findings from a New Assessment Instrument," *Behavior Modification* (27:4), pp. 484–504.

Scherer, K. 1997. "College Life Online of College Life and Development," *Healthy and Unhealthy Internet Use Journal* (38), pp. 655–665.

Shapira, N. A., Lessig, M. C., Goldsmith, T. D., Szabo, S. T., Lazoritz, M., Gold, M. S., and Stein, D. J. 2003. "Problematic Internet Use: Proposed Classification and Diagnostic Criteria," *Depression and Anxiety* (17:4), pp. 207–216.

Shaw, M., and Black, D. W. 2008. "Internet Addiction: Definition, Assessment, Epidemiology and Clinical Management," *CNS Drugs* (22:5), pp. 353–365.

Smetaniuk, P. 2014. "A Preliminary Investigation into the Prevalence and Prediction of Problematic Cell Phone Use," *Journal of Behavioral Addictions* (3:1), pp. 41–53.

Spekman, M. L., Konijn, E. A., Roelofsma, P. H., and Griffiths, M. D. 2013. "Gaming Addiction, Definition and Measurement: A Large-Scale Empirical Study," *Computers in Human Behavior* (29:6), pp. 2150–2155.

Statistica Inc. 2019a. "Number of Smartphone Users Worldwide 2014-2020," *Statista*. (https://www.statista.com/statistics/330695/number-of-smartphone-users-worldwide/, accessed May 29, 2019).

Statistica Inc. 2019b. "Number of Social Media Users Worldwide 2010-2021," *Statista*. (https://www.statista.com/statistics/278414/number-of-worldwide-social-network-users/, accessed May 29, 2019).

Tao, R., Huang, X., Wang, J., Zhang, H., Zhang, Y., and Li, M. 2010. "Proposed Diagnostic Criteria for Internet Addiction," *Addiction* (105:3), pp. 556–564.

Tavşancıl E. (2006). Utumların Ölçülmesi ve SPSS Ile Veri Analizi [Attitude Measurement and Its SPSS Data Analysis], (3rd ed.), Ankara, TU: Nobel Publishing.

Tejeiro Salguero, R. A., and Morán, R. M. B. 2002. "Measuring Problem Video Game Playing in Adolescents," *Addiction* (97:12), pp. 1601–1606.

Tezbaşaran, A. 1997. *Likert tipi ölçek geliştirme klavuzu [Guide of likert scale development]*, (2th ed.), Ankara, TU: Turkish Psychological Association Publication.

Thatcher, A., and Goolam, S. 2005. "Development and Psychometric Properties of the Problematic Internet Use Questionnaire," *South African Journal of Psychology* (35:4), pp. 793–809.

Toda, M., Monden, K., Kubo, K., and Morimoto, K. 2004. "Cellular Phone Dependence Tendency of Female University Students," *Nippon Eiseigaku Zasshi (Japanese Journal of Hygiene)* (59:4), pp. 383–386.

Toda, M., Nishio, N., and Takeshita, T. 2015. "Development of a New Scale for Gauging Smartphone Dependence," *Nippon Eiseigaku Zasshi (Japanese Journal of Hygiene)* (70:3), pp. 259–263.

Vadlin, S., Åslund, C., and Nilsson, K. W. 2015. "Development and Content Validity of a Screening Instrument for Gaming Addiction in Adolescents: The Gaming Addiction Identification Test (GAIT)," *Scandinavian Journal of Psychology* (56:4), pp. 458–466.

Walsh, S. P., White, K. M., and Young, R. M. 2010. "Needing to Connect: The Effect of Self and Others on Young People's Involvement with Their Mobile Phones," *Australian Journal of Psychology* (62:4), pp. 194–203.

Walsh, S. P., White, K. M., Cox, S., and Young, R. M. 2011. "Keeping in Constant Touch: The Predictors of Young Australians' Mobile Phone Involvement," *Computers in Human Behavior* (27:1), pp. 333–342.

Webster, J., and Watson, R. T. 2002. "Analyzing the Past to Prepare for the Future: Writing a Literature Review," *MIS Quarterly* (26:2), pp. xiii–xxiii.

Weinstein, A., and Lejoyeux, M. 2010. "Internet Addiction or Excessive Internet Use," *The American Journal of Drug and Alcohol Abuse* (36:5), pp. 277–283.

West, J., and Mace, M. 2010. "Browsing as the Killer App: Explaining the Rapid Success of Apple's IPhone," *Telecommunications Policy* (34), pp. 270–286.

WHO. 1992. The ICD-10 Classification of Mental and Behavioural Disorders: Clinical Descriptions and Diagnostic Guidelines, Geneva, CH: World Health Organization.

WHO. 2018. "International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems (11th revision)," *WHO*. (http://www.who.int/classifications/icd/revision/en/, accessed May 17, 2019).

WHO. 2019. "World Health Assembly Update, 25 May 2019", May 25. (https://www.who.int/news-room/detail/25-05-2019-world-health-assembly-update, accessed May 31, 2019).

Widyanto, L., and McMurran, M. 2004. "The Psychometric Properties of the Internet Addiction Test," *Cyberpsychology & Behavior* (7:4), pp. 443–450.

Wolniczak, I., Cáceres-DelAguila, J. A., Palma-Ardiles, G., Arroyo, K. J., Solís-Visscher, R., Paredes-Yauri, S., Mego-Aquije, K., and Bernabe-Ortiz, A. 2013. "Association between Facebook Dependence and Poor Sleep Quality: A Study in a Sample of Undergraduate Students in Peru," *PloS One* (8:3), p. e59087.

Xu, J., Shen, L., Yan, C., Hu, H., Yang, F., Wang, L., Kotha, S. R., Zhang, L., Liao, X., Zhang, Jun, Ouyang, F., Zhang, Jin-song, and Shen, X. 2012. "Personal Characteristics Related to the Risk of Adolescent Internet Addiction: A Survey in Shanghai, China," *BMC Public Health* (12:1), p. 1106.

Yen, C. F., Tang, T. C., Yen, J. Y., Lin, H. C., Huang, C. F., Liu, S. C., and Ko, C. H. 2009. "Symptoms of Problematic Cellular Phone Use, Functional Impairment and Its Association with Depression among Adolescents in Southern Taiwan," *Journal of Adolescence* (32:4), pp. 863–873.

Yılmaz, E., Griffiths, M. D., and Kan, A. 2017. "Development and Validation of Videogame Addiction Scale for Children (VASC)," *International Journal of Mental Health and Addiction* (15:4), pp. 869–882.

Young, K. S. 1996. "Psychology of Computer Use: XL. Addictive Use of the Internet: A Case That Breaks the Stereotype," *Psychological Reports* (79:3), pp. 899–902.

Young, K. S. 1998a. *Caught in the Net: How to Recognize the Signs of Internet Addiction–and a Winning Strategy for Recovery*, New York, NY: John Wiley & Sons.

Young, K. S. 1998b. "Internet Addiction: The Emergence of a New Clinical Disorder," *Cyberpsychology & Behavior* (1:3), pp. 237–244.

Yu, Q., Zhang, L., Wu, S., Guo, Y., Jin, S., and Sun, Y. 2017. "The Influence of Juvenile Preference for Online Social Interaction on Problematic Internet Use: The Moderating Effect of Sibling Condition and the Moderated Moderating Effect of Age Cohort," *Computers in Human Behavior* (68), pp. 345–351.

APPENDIX

Technology Addiction Scales

Appendix 1

<u></u>
5
\smile
دە
5
78
-
2
3
5
÷
5
÷Ĕ
Ξ
ā
<u>-</u>
7
2
S.
a
Ë
5
· 🗖
č.
Ð
Ē
.=
-
읟
.Ħ
Ħ
5
Š
ė
E
đ
ž
5
Ť
Ĩ.
0
2
~
н н
q
ē
t
ā
Ĥ
Ľ,
F.

	Perso- nality	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Inten- tion to use	in the future	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (000)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (000)
	Irrele- vant	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Utility and	functi- on loss	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	2 (7.69)
Descr- iptive of use	behav- iour	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)
Cogni- tive	absorp- tion	0 (0.00)	(3.85)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (0.00)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	(3.85)
Social	com- fort	6 (18.18)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	6 (20.69)	0 (0.00)	1 (5.00)	0 (00.0)
	Escap- ism	0 (000)	0 (000)	(6.67)	2 (7.14)	0 (000)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	1 (3.85)
Mood	regulat -ion	8 (24.24)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	1 (3.57)	0 (00.0)	2 (6.90)	2 (20.00)	0 (00.0)	2 (7.69)
	Salien- ce	1 (3.03)	2 (7.69)	0 (00.0)	2 (7.14)	1 (5.00)	1 (3.45)	(10.00)	5 (25.00)	(3.85)
With- drawal	sym- ptoms	3 (9.09)	6 (23.08)	5 (33.33)	3 (10.71)	5 (25.00)	6 (20.69)	(10.00)	1 (5.00)	4 (15.38)
Neg- ative	out- comes	7 (21.21)	8 (30.77)	5 (33.33)	6 (21.43)	9 (45.00)	7 (24.14)	5 (50.00)	8 (40.00)	8 (30.77)
Com-	pulsive use	8 (24.24)	9 (34.62)	4 (26.67)	14 (50.00)	5 (25.00)	7 (24.14)	(10.00)	5 (25.00)	7 (26.92)
	Name of Scale	Smartphone Addiction Scale (SAS)	Smartphone Addiction Inventory (SPAI)	Smartphone Addiction Proneness Scale (SAPS)	Smartphone Overuse Screening Questionnaire (SOS-Q)	Problematic Use of Mobile Phone (PUMP)	Smartphone Dependence Scale (J-SDS)	Adapted Mobile Phone Use Habits (AMPUH)	Adapted Cell Phone Addiction Test (ACPAT)	Mobile Phone Problem Use Scale for Spanish Adolescent (MMPUSA)
	Technology	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone
	Year	2013	2014	2014	2017	2013	2016	2014	2014	2014
	Reference	Kwon et al., 2013a	Lin et al., 2014	Kim et al., 2014	Lee et al., 2017	Merlo et al., 2013	Ezoe et al.,2016	Smetaniuk, 2014	Smetaniuk, 2014	Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2014
	ID	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	~	6

Technology Addiction Scales

$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Walds et al Mobile Phone	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (0.00)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	1(5.26)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	(0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	9 (37.50)	(10.53)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
	0(00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (0.00)	0.00)	0 (00.0)	(5.00)
	0 (0.00)	2 (10.53)	(5.56)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
	$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\ (12.50) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 0.00 \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ (4.00) \end{array} $	0 (00.0)	0(00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Waish et al., 2010 Z010 Samerphone (2010) Mobile Phone (2010) Mobile Phone (2010) Mobile Phone (2010) Z010 Z010 <thz010< th=""></thz010<>	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	(12.5)	3 (15)
Walsh et al., 2010 Mobile Phone Involvement 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 2010 2015 Smartphone Smartphone Mobile Phone (MPtQ) Casson 22 1 11 Bian et al., 2015 2010 Smartphone Mobile Phone (MPtQ) (25.00) (12.5) (5.56) 12 Cogguner, 2012 2012 Smartphone Problematic Phone Use Scale (PMPUS) (44.44) (38.89) (5.56) (5.56) 13 Choliz, 2012 2012 Smartphone Mobile Phone Use Nobile Phone Use (44.44) (38.89) (5.56) (5.56) (5.56) 14 2018 Smartphone Mobile Phone Use (MPtU-Q-R) (9.00) (0.00) (0.00) 14 2018 Smartphone Cantion and Lec. (PMPU-Q-R) (25.02) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) 15 De-Sola et al., 2015 2015 Smartphone Scale (MPAS) (29.17) (4.17) (29.17) (0.00) 16 2016 2015 Smartphone Scale (MPAS) (29.2) (20.00) (10.53)	0 0	(5.26)	0 (00.0)	2 (9.09)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	(5.26)	2 (8.00)	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ (8.33) \end{array} $	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Walsh et al., 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2015 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2015 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2015 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2017 Mobile Phone Addition 2015 Mobile Phone Addition 2015 Mobile Phone Addition 2016 Mobile Phone Addition 2016	2 (25.00)	(5.26)	(5.56)	(4.55)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	2 (10.53)	4 (16.00)	0 (00.0)	(3.33)	(12.50)	4 (20.00)
Wolsh et al., 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2015 Mobile Phone 2015 2 1 2 2 1 2 <th2< th=""> 2 2 2</th2<>	1 (12.5)	3 (15.79)	(5.56)	2 (9.09)	0 (00.0)	8 (100)	7 (29.17)	2 (10.53)	5 (20.00)	3 (25.00)	3 (10.00)	$\begin{pmatrix} 1 \\ (12.50) \end{pmatrix}$	(5.00)
Walsh et al., 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Mobile Phone 2015 Mobile Phone 10 2015 11 2015 2015 Smartphone Questionnaire (MPIO) (25,00) 12 2015 2015 Smartphone Smartphone Addiction 6 12 2015 Smartphone Smartphone Nanchenent (31,58) 12 Cosguner, 2012 2012 Smartphone Problematic Phone Use 11 13 Chóliz, 2012 2012 Smartphone Dependence (MPD) (50,00) 13 Chóliz, 2012 2012 Smartphone Dependence (MPD) (50,00) 14 2018 Smartphone Dependence (MPD) (50,00) 15 Cosguner, 2012 2012 Smartphone Dependence (14,44) 16 2017 Smartphone Dependence (14,47) (7 17 2018 Smartphone Carving Scale (MPAS) (20,00) (24,00) 17 2016 Smartphone Addiction 0 (2 (25.00)	6 (31.58)	7 (38.89)	6 (27.27)	9 (56.25)	0 (00.0)	1 (4.17)	6 (31.58)	7 (28.00)	2 (16.67)	21 (70.00)	2 (25.00)	7 (35.00)
Walsh et al., 2010 Mobile Phone Involvement 2010 Mobile Phone 2010 Bian et al., 2015 2010 Smartphone Addiction Index (SPAI) Bian et al., 2015 2015 Smartphone Addiction Index (SPAI) Cdüzeller and Güzeller and 2012 2012 Smartphone Problematic Phone Use Mobile Phone Use Kuss et al., 2017 2012 Smartphone Problematic Mobile Phone Use Kuss et al., 2017a 2013 Smartphone Mobile Phone Addiction Problematic Mobile Bock et al., 2017a 2016 Smartphone Cheaticin Phone Use Choiiz, 2012 2015 Smartphone Mobile Phone Addiction Phone Use Vaus et al., 2017a 2016 Smartphone Craving Scale (MPAS) Poole 2016 Smartphone Cheation Mobile Phone Addiction 17 2017a 2015 Smartphone Cheation Mobile Phone Addiction 17 2016 Smartphone Cheation Mobile Phone Addiction Cheation Mobile Phone Addiction 17 2016 Smartphone Cheation mite Use Cheation mite Use 17 2016 Smartphone Cheation	2 (25.00)	6 (31.58)	8 (44.44)	11 (50.00)	7 (43.75)	0 (00.0)	7 (29.17)	5 (26.32)	6 (24.00)	6 (50.00)	5 (16.67)	3 (37.50)	4 (20.00)
Walsh et al., 20102010SmartphoneBian et al., Bian et al.,2015SmartphoneBian et al., Bian et al.,2015SmartphoneCogguner, 20122012SmartphoneGüzeller and Güzeller and2012SmartphoneCogguner, 20122012SmartphoneKuss et al., 20182018SmartphoneDe-Sola et al., 20162016SmartphoneDe-Sola et al., 20152017SmartphoneCho and Lee, 20152015SmartphoneBock et al., 20152015SmartphoneBock et al., 20152016SmartphoneBock et al., 20152016SmartphoneBock et al., 20152016SmartphoneBock et al., 20152016SmartphoneBock et al., 20182016SmartphoneUnivencia- 20162016SmartphoneBillieux et al., 20162016SmartphoneBillieux et al., 200820162008Sung, 1998b1998InternetPung, 1998a1998Internet	Mobile Phone Involvement Questionnaire (MPIQ)	Smartphone Addiction Index (SPAI)	Problematic Phone Use Scale (PMPUS)	Mobile Phone Dependence (MPD)	Problematic Mobile Phone Use Questionnaire Updated (PMPU-Q-R)	Mobile Phone Addiction Craving Scale (MPACS)	Mobile Phone Affinity Scale (MPAS)	Smartphone Addiction Scale for Nurses	Cuestionario de Abuso del Teléfono Móvil (ATEMO)	Multicultural Test of Mobile Phone Dependence (TMDBrief)	Problematic Mobile Phone Use Questionaire (PMPUQ)	Diagnostic Questionnaire (DQ)	Internet Addiction Test (IAT)
Walsh et al., 2010 2010 Bian et al., Bian et al., 2015 2015 Bian et al., 2015 2015 Güzeller and Güzeller and Güzeller al. 2012 Güzeller and Güzeller al. 2012 Güzeller and Güzeller al. 2013 Bock et al., 2016 2016 De-Sola et al., 2015 2016 Bock et al., 2016 2016 Bock et al., 2015 2016 Bock et al., 2016 2016 Bock et al., 2015 2016 Bock et al., 2016 2016 Portion et al., 2016 2016 Billieux et al., 2016 2016 Billieux et al., 2008 2018 2017 2016 Poung, 1998a 1998	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Smartphone	Internet	Internet
Walsh et al.,10201020102010Bian et al.,2015Güzeller and12Coşguner, 201213Chóliz, 2012142018152017a16201617201518Bock et al.,2015Olivencia-172015182018201820182018201821Young, 1998a21Young, 1998a	2010	2015	2012	2012	2018	2017	2016	2015	2018	2016	2008	1998	1998
	Walsh et al., 2010	Bian et al., 2015	Güzeller and Coşguner, 2012	Chóliz, 2012	Kuss et al., 2018	De-Sola et al., 2017a	Bock et al., 2016	Cho and Lee, 2015	Olivencia- Carrión et al., 2018	Chóliz et al., 2016	Billieux et al., 2008	Young, 1998b	Young, 1998a
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22

42

Technology Addiction Scales

00) (00.0) (00.0) (000)		$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 &$	$ \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 &$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 &$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
0.0) (00.0) (00.0)		0.0) (00.0) (0.0(0.0) 0.0) 0.0) 0.0) 0.0) 0.0) 0.0)	000) (000) (000	0 0	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$
.29) (0.00) (0.(0 (31.03) (0.0		2 .76) (0.00) (0.0	2 0 0.00) (0.0 .76) (0.00) (0.0 2 0 0 (0.0	2 0 0.1 .76) (0.00) (0.0 2 0 0 0.0 .18) (0.00) (0.0 .67) (0.00) (0.0	2 0 0.1 .76) (0.00) (0.0 2 0 0.1 .18) (0.00) (0.0 .67) (0.00) (0.0 .11) (0.00) (0.0	2 0 0.0 .76) (0.00) (0.0 .18) (0.00) (0.0 .67) (0.00) (0.0 .11) (0.00) (0.0 .67) (0.00) (0.0	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
(14.) (14.) (14.)	3 (4) (13.79) (0.0	-	$\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 88 \end{bmatrix} (5.88) (11.7)$	$\begin{array}{c c}1 \\ \hline 1 \\ \hline 38 \\ \hline 2 \\ \hline 8 \\ \hline 111. \\ \hline 2 \\ \hline 38 \\ \hline 111. $	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccc} 1 \\ 8 \\ 8 \\ \hline 2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$
3) (7.14) (14.2)	$\begin{array}{c c} 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\$	5 [) (11.76) (5.8		2 0 3) (0.00) (18.1 ³	$\begin{array}{c c} 2 & 0 \\ \hline 3 & (0.00) & (18.1) \\ \hline 2 & 4 & \\ \hline 3 & (26.67) & (0.0) \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccc} 2 & 0 \\ (18.18) \\ \hline 2 & 2 \\ (16.67) \\ (16.67) \\ (16.67) \\ (16.66) \\ (16.66) \\ (16.66) \\ (16.66) \\ (16.66) \\ (10.66) \\ (11.54) \\ (11.54) \\ (11.54) \\ (11.54) \\ (13.4) \\ (13.4) \\ (11.54) \\ (13.4) \\ (11.54) \\ (13.4) \\ (11.54) \\ (13.4) \\ (11.54) \\ $	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	$\begin{array}{c ccccc} 2 & 0 \\ (18.18) \\ \hline 2 & 2 \\ \hline 3 & (16.67) \\ \hline 5 & (16.67) \\ (16.67) \\ (16.67) \\ (16.66) \\ \hline 1 \\ (16.66) \\ \hline 1 \\ (10.66) \\ \hline 1 \\ (10.64) \\ (12.9) \\ \hline 1 \\ (12.9) \\ \hline 1 \\ (6.45) \\ (12.9) \\ \hline \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c cccccc} 2 & 0 \\ (1) & (0.00) & (18.18) \\ \hline 2 & 2 & 4 \\ 5 & (26.67) & (0.06) \\ \hline 5 & (16.67) & (16.6) \\ \hline 1 & (11.54) & (13.44) \\ \hline 7 & (11.54) & (12.90) \\ \hline 8 & (2 & 00) & (20.00) \\ \hline 1 & (5.00) & (20.00) \\ \hline 1 & (5.00) & (20.00) \\ \hline 1 & (5.00) & (20.00) \\ \hline 1 & (9.68) & (6.4) \\ \hline \end{array}$
(35.71) (21.43	(27.59) (10.34	6 (35.29) (29.41	(45.45) (18.18		(33.33) (13.33	5 (33.33) (13.33 (27.78) (27.78	5 5 5 5 (33.33) (13.33 (27.78) (27.78 (27.33) (33.33)	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Scale (CIUS)	Generalized Pathological Internet Use Scale (GPIUS)	Internet Overuse Screening Questionaire (IOS-Q)	Internet Overuse Scale (IOS)		Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA) DRM 52 Scale of Internet-use in Adolsescent (DRM 52- Scale)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA) DRM 52 Scale of Internet-use in Adolsescent (DRM 52- Scale) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA) DRM 52 Scale of Internet-use in Adolsescent (DRM 52- Scale) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Chinese Internet Addiction Inventory (CIAI)	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA) DRM 52 Scale of Internet-use in Adolsescent (DRM 52- Scale) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Chinese Internet Addiction Inventory (CIAI) Internet Related Problem Questionaire	Internet Disorder Scale (IDS-15) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Problematic Internet Entertainment Use Scale for Adolescents (PIEUSA) DRM 52 Scale of Internet-use in Adolsescent (DRM 52- Scale) Problematic Internet Use Questionaire (PIUQ) Chinese Internet Questionaire (PIUQ) (CIAI) Internet Related Problem Questionaire Internet Use Survey (IUS)
Internet	Internet	Internet	Internet		Internet	Internet Internet	Internet	Internet Internet Internet	Internet Internet Internet Internet	Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet	Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet	Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet
2009	2002	2018	2007		2017	2017 2008	2017 2008 2013	2017 2008 2013 2013 2012	2017 2008 2013 2012 2012 2005	2017 2008 2013 2012 2005 2005 2007	2017 2008 2013 2012 2005 2007 2007 2007	2017 2008 2013 2012 2005 2005 2007 2000 2000
2009	Caplan, 2002	Lee et al., 2018	Jenaro et al., 2007	Pontes and Griffiths, 2017		Demetrovics, et al., 2008	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013 Xu et al., 2012	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013 Xu et al., 2012 Thatcher and Goolam, 2005	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013 Au et al., 2012 Thatcher and Goolam, 2005 Huang et al., 2007	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013 al., 2013 Xu et al., 2012 Thatcher and Goolam, 2005 Huang et al., 2007 Armstrong et al., 2000	Demetrovics, et al., 2008 Lopez- Fernandez et al., 2013 Xu et al., 2012 Thatcher and Goolam, 2005 Huang et al., 2007 Armstrong et al., 2000 Rotunda . et al., 2003
23	24	25]	26	27		28	28 29	28 29 30	28 29 30 31	28 29 30 31 31 32	28 29 30 31 33 33 33	28 29 31 31 33 33 33 33 33 33 33

43

Technology Addiction Scales

36 Rebnin et al., 2010 Video Dependency Static (53.71) (14.29) (21.3) (0.00)														
36 Rethon each yrateo Wateo Game 5 2 1 2 1 0<	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
36 Exploring and, 2010 Video Game (Free Video Free Video (Free Video Free Video (Free Vi	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)
36 2010 Video Dependency State 5 1 1 0 1 0 <td>0 (000)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (0.00)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (000)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>1 (3.45)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (000)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td>	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	1 (3.45)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)
36 Ethlein et al., 2010 Video game Video Dependency Static 5 1 2 2 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
36 Retherin et al., 2010 Video Game State 5 2 <th2< th=""> <th2< th=""> <th2< th=""></th2<></th2<></th2<>	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	3 (14.29)	0 (00.0)	0 (000)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (000)	0 (0.00)	2 (6.90)	(12.50)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
36 Endbein et al., 2010 Video Game Berendency Scale 5 1 2 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0	1 (7.14)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	4 (19.05)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	(11.11)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (0.00)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
36 Rethbein et al., 2010 Video Video Game Video (Game Video (Gam	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
Retherin et al., 2010 Video Game game Video Game Addiction (KFN-CSAS II) Video (35.7) (35.7) (14.29) (14.29) (14.29) (14.29) (7.14) (14.29) 37 2012 game Video Game Addiction and construction (35.7) (14.29) (14.29) (7.14) 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction scale (35.1) (28.57) (9.09) (9.09) (0.00) 39 Cientile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction scale (38.18) (54.55) (14.29) (7.14) (0.00) 30 Jina Video Game Addiction scale Scale for Children (38.57) (19.05) (19.29) (0.00) 40 Jap et al., 2013 2013 game Video Gaming Scale (38.57) (19.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) (0.00) (11.11) <td>1 (7.14)</td> <td>2 (14.29)</td> <td>(9.09)</td> <td>$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ (4.76) \end{array}$</td> <td>$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\ (14.29) \end{pmatrix}$</td> <td>(11.11)</td> <td>$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\(11.11) \end{pmatrix}$</td> <td>1 (6.67)</td> <td>(5.00)</td> <td>3 (16.67)</td> <td>(3.45)</td> <td>$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td> <td>0 (00.0)</td>	1 (7.14)	2 (14.29)	(9.09)	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ (4.76) \end{array} $	$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\ (14.29) \end{pmatrix}$	(11.11)	$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\(11.11) \end{pmatrix}$	1 (6.67)	(5.00)	3 (16.67)	(3.45)	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ (0.00) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)
36 Rehbein et al., 2010 Video Video Game Addiction 23 71 14 29 14 20 20 90<	0 (00.0)	1 (7.14)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	0 (00.0)	$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\(11.11) \end{pmatrix}$	0 (00.0)	3 (15.00)	0 (00.0)	1 (3.45)	0 (00.0)	1 (16.67)	(12.50)
Rehbein et al., 2010 Video game Video (KFN-CSAS II) (35 71) (14.29) (14.29) 37 2010 2010 game Video Game Addiction (35 71) (14.29) (14.29) 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction (28 57) (28.57) (7.14) 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction (28 57) (9.00) 39 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction (38 45) (9.00) 30 Video Scale for Children (28 57) (19.05) (0.00) 30 2017 game Video Game Addiction Scale (14.20) (42 20) 40 Dapt et al., 2013 2013 game Addiction Scale (14.20) (412 20) 41 2016 Madeaptive Cognition Scale (or Children (28 57) (14.20) 42 Jap et al., 2013 2013 game Madiction Scale (14.20) (14.20) 41 2016 ga	3 (21.43)	2 (14.29)	(9.09)	3 (14.29)	(14.29)	4 (22.22)	0 (00.0)	1 (6.67)	2 (10.00)	2 (11.11)	5 (17.24)	$\begin{pmatrix} 1 \\ (12.50) \end{pmatrix}$	1 (16.67)	(12.50)
Rehbein et al., 2010 Video game Video (KFN-CSAS II) Video (35 71) Video (14.29) 37 2012 2010 2010 2010 28.571 (28.57) 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction 4 4 39 Z012 2012 game Video Game Addiction 28.57 (28.57) 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 game Video Game Addiction 6 4 39 2017 game Video Game Addiction (28.57) (19.05) 40 Jap et al., 2013 2013 game hddiction Scale (14.29) (42.8) 41 2016 2016 game Maddaptive Cognition (14.20) (28.57) 42 2015 game Nideo Maddaptive Cognition (14.20) (25.60) 43 2016 2016 game Indencion Scale (14.20) (26.67) 44 2016 game Nideo Realustion (PIE-9)	2 (14.29)	1 (7.14)	1 (9.09)	0 (00.0)	(14.29)	1 (5.56)	(11.11)	1 (6.67)	3 (15)	4 (22.22)	2 (6.90)	(12.50)	1 (16.67)	(12.50)
Rehbein et al., Video Video Game Scale S(FN-CSAS II) (35.71) (35.77) (35.71) (35.77) (35.71) (35.77) (35.71) (35.71) (35.71) (28.57) (35.71) (28.57) (35.71) (28.57) (35.71) (28.57) (35.71) (28.57) (35.71) (28.57) (37.70) (28.57) (37.70) (28.57) (37.50) (30.00) <td>2 (14.29)</td> <td>4 (28.57)</td> <td>6 (54.55)</td> <td>4 (19.05)</td> <td>3 (42.86)</td> <td>(11.11)</td> <td>3 (33.33)</td> <td>4 (26.67)</td> <td>5 (25.00)</td> <td>4 (22.22)</td> <td>8 (27.59)</td> <td>2 (25.00)</td> <td>1 (16.67)</td> <td>4 (50.00)</td>	2 (14.29)	4 (28.57)	6 (54.55)	4 (19.05)	3 (42.86)	(11.11)	3 (33.33)	4 (26.67)	5 (25.00)	4 (22.22)	8 (27.59)	2 (25.00)	1 (16.67)	4 (50.00)
36 2010 Same Video Game 37 2010 game Video Game Addiction 37 2012 game KFN-CSAS II) 38 Canile, 2009 2010 game KFN-CSAS II) 38 Gentile, 2009 2000 game Addiction 39 Z017 2012 game Test (VAT) 39 Cantile, 2009 2009 game Addiction 39 Z017 2013 2013 game Addiction 40 Jap et al., 2013 2013 game Addiction Scale 41 2016 game Maladaptive Cognition 42 2015 game Fouraution (PIE-9) 43 2015 game Fouraution (PIE-9) 44 2016 game Fouraution (FIC-20) 45 Pontes et al., 2014 game 46 Dametrovics et al., 2016 game 47 Vadlin et al., 2014 game Addiction Test 48 al., 2012 2012 game fanotes	5 (35.71)	4 (28.57)	2 (18.18)	6 (28.57)	1 (14.29)	9 (50.00)	2 (22.22)	8 (53.33)	6 (30.00)	5 (27.78)	9 (31.03)	3 (37.50)	2 (33.33)	(12.50)
36Rehbein et al., 20102010wideo3720122010game37van Rooij et al., 20122012game38Gentile, 20092009game39Yılmaz et al., 20172017game40Jap et al., 20132013game4120162016game42Pearcy et al., 20152016game43Yadlin et al., 20152015game4420162016game45Pearcy et al., 20152015game46Danetrovics et al., 20152015game47Pontes et al., 20142014game48al., 20122012game49Benetrovics et al., 20132013game40Benetrovics et al., 20132013game41201420142014game42Benetrovics et al., 20122012game43Benetrovics et al., 20122013game44Banforth, 20072007game45Benetrovics et al., 20122013SNS46Banforth, 200120132013SNS47Koc and al., 201320132013SNS48Gulyagci, 201320132013SNS	Video Game Dependency Scale (KFN-CSAS II)	Video Game Addiction Test (VAT)	Pathological-gaming scale	Video Game Addiction Scale for Children (VASC)	Indonesien Online Game Addiction Scale	Maladaptive Cognition in Video Gaming Scale	Personal Disorder Evaluation (PIE-9)	Gaming Addiction Identification Test (GAIT)	Internet Gaming Disorder (IGD-20)	Problematic Online Gaming Questionaire (POGQ)	Addiction – Engagement questionnaire	Facebook Intrusion Scale	Bergen Facebook Addiction Scale (BFAS)	Facebook Addiction Scale (FAS)
36 Rehbein et al., 2010 2010 37 2010 2010 37 van Rooij et al., 2012 2012 38 Gentile, 2009 2009 39 Yılmaz et al., 2017 2013 40 Jap et al., 2013 2016 41 2016 2016 42 Pearcy et al., 2015 2016 43 Vadlin et al., 2015 2016 44 2015 2015 45 Pontes et al., 2015 2015 46 Damforth, 2007 2007 47 Demetrovics et al., 2012 2012 48 al., 2012 2012 49 Gunforth, 2007 2013 49 Gulyagei, 2013 2013	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	Video game	SNS	SNS	SNS
36Rehbein et al.,37201037van Rooij et al.,38Gentile, 200938Gentile, 200939Yılmaz et al.,40Jap et al., 201641201642Pearcy et al.,43201544201645Pontest et al.,46Demetrovics et47Pontes et al., 201248al., 201249Demetrovics et41Noller, 201142Charlton and43Vadlin et al., 201344Noller, 201347Noller, 201348al., 201249Gulyagci, 2013	2010	2012	2009	2017	2013	2016	2016	2015	2014	2012	2007	2011	2012	2013
36 33 37 33 38 33 39 39 40 40 41 41 42 43 43 43 44 44 45 44 46 44 47 43 48 44 49 44 49 44 49 44	Rehbein et al., 2010	van Rooij et al., 2012	Gentile, 2009	Yılmaz et al., 2017	Jap et al., 2013	Forrest et al., 2016	Pearcy et al., 2016	Vadlin et al., 2015	Pontes et al., 2014	Demetrovics et al., 2012	Charlton and Danforth, 2007	Elphinston and Noller, 2011	Andreassen et al., 2012	Koc and Gulyagci, 2013
	36	37	38	39	40	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49

Abendroth	
Adrian.	

Technology Addiction Scales

Liu and Ma, Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 0 <th< th=""><th></th><th></th></th<>		
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 SNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 0	0	(00.0)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 SNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 0	0	(00.0)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 CNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 0	0	(00.0)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 CN Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 0 50 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (21.43) (10.71) (0.00)	0	(00.0)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 CNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 3 50 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (17.86) (21.43) (10.71) (10.71)	0	(0.00)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 SNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 6 150 2018 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (21.43) (0.00) (21.43)	3	(10.71)
¹ 50 Liu and Ma, 2018 CN Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 0 Scale 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (17.86) (0.00)	9	(21.43)
50 Liu and Ma, 2018 Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 5 50 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00) (17.86)	0	(00.0)
Liu and Ma, 2018 Z018 SNS Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 0 50 2018 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43) (0.00)	5	(17.86)
Liu and Ma, Chinese Social Media 3 5 6 50 2018 SNS Scale (10.71) (17.86) (21.43)	0	(00.0)
Liu and Ma, Chinese Social Media 3 5 50 2018 2018 SNS Chinese Social Media 3 5	9	(21.43)
50Liu and Ma, 20182018SNSChinese Social Media3502018SNSScale(10.71)	5	(17.86)
50Liu and Ma, 20182018Chinese Social Media502018SNSScale	3	(10.71)
50 Liu and Ma, 2018 SNS	Chinese Social Media	Scale
50 Liu and Ma, 2018		SNS
50 Liu and Ma, 2018		2018
50	Liu and Ma,	2018
		50

Note: Extracted records representing dimensional distribution for each scale n (%). The sum of percent of each row is 100%.

Appendix 2

Paper, on which extracted Scales were based on

ID	Reference
51	Kim et al. 2008a
52	Yen et al. 2009
53	Chen et al. 2003
54	Tejeiro Salguero and Morán, 2002
55	Widyanto and McMurran, 2004
56	Toda et al., 2004
57	Kwon et al., 2013b
58	Mok et al., 2014
59	Ching et al. 2015
60	Toda et al., 2015
61	Bianchi and Phillips, 2005
62	Cloninger et al., 1994
63	Brown, 1993
64	Brown, 1997
65	Horvath, 2004
66	Leung, 2008
67	DeVellis, 2016
68	Tavşancıl, 2006
69	Tezbaşaran, 1997
70	Bock et al., 2016b
71	National Information Society Agency, 2011
72	Meerkerk et al., 2003
73	Haagsma et al., 2013
74	Morahan-Martin and Schumacher, 2000
75	Pratarelli et al., 1999
76	Scherer, 1997
77	Shapira et al., 2003
78	Ko et al., 2005b
79	Ko et al., 2005a
80	Tao et al., 2010
81	Young, 1996

82	DRM Study Group, 2016
83	Weinstein and Lejoyeux, 2010
84	Ko et al., 2009
85	Lesieur and Blume, 1987
86	Brenner, 1997
87	Farmer and Sundberg, 1986
88	Hahn and Jerusalem, 2001
89	WHO, 1992
90	Gaetan et al., 2014
91	Khazaal et al., 2016
92	Mak et al., 2014
93	Lemos et al., 2016
94	Pontes and Griffiths, 2015
95	Spekman et al., 2013
96	Griffiths, 1996
97	Kim et al., 2008b
98	Caplan, 2010
99	Davis, 2001
100	Delfabbro and King, 2015
101	King and Delfabbro, 2014
102	Bush et al., 1998
103	Griffiths, 2005
104	Buchanan, 2001
105	Buchanan and Smith, 1999
106	Walsh et al., 2011
107	Griffiths, 2000
108	Hormes et al., 2014
109	Caplan, 2003
110	Casale et al., 2013
111	Chung, 2013
112	Fioravanti et al., 2012
113	Yu et al., 2017
114	Griffiths, 1999
115	Koo, 2009
116	Fargues et al., 2009

117	De-Sola et al., 2017b
118	Charlton, 2002
119	APA, 2013 (Criteria for behavioural addiction)
120	APA, 1994 (Substance use disorder)
121	APA, 2013 (Pathological gambling)
122	APA, 2013 (IGD)
123	APA, 1994 (Personality disorder)
124	APA, 2000 (Substance use disorder)
125	APA, 1994 (Pathological gambling)
126	APA, 2013 (Substance use disorder)
127	APA, 2000 (Pathological gambling)

Appendix 3

ID Extracted Scales	ID Mapped Scales
1	51
2	50;52
3	51
4	NA
5	54;55;126
6	1;2;3;22;56;57;58;59;60
7	127
8	21
9	62
10	63;64
11	21;61;65
12	61;66;67;68;69;115
13	127
14	20
15	61
16	70
17	1;51;71
18	13;19;20;26;116;117;119

Extracted Scales mapped to Scale based on

19	13
20	NA
21	125
22	NA
23	72;114;120;125
24	22;33;73;74;75;76
25	121;126
26	125
27	122
28	22
29	21;77;78;79;80;124;127
30	81;82;83;84
31	21;85
32	22;53
33	86;120
34	87;120;123;125
35	121
36	88;89
37	23
38	121
39	35;44;90;91;92;93;94;95;126

40	35;45;96;97;127
41	98;99;100;101
42	122
43	45;102;103;121
44	103;122
45	22
46	104;105;118
47	64;106
48	63;103;127
49	22;74
50	21;83;107;109;110;111;112;113

Note: NA means that the extracted scale

was not based on another scale.

SELBSTSTÄNDIGKEITSERKLÄRUNG

Hiermit versichere ich, dass ich die vorliegende Arbeit ohne Hilfe Dritter und ohne Zuhilfenahme anderer als der angegebenen Quellen und Hilfsmittel angefertigt habe. Die den benutzten Quellen wörtlich oder inhaltlich entnommenen Stellen sind als solche kenntlich gemacht. Diese Arbeit hat in gleicher oder ähnlicher Form noch keiner Prüfungsbehörde vorgelegen.

Ort, Datum

Unterschrift